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Annexure 4.6(8): Sundry Creditors

SN

O 0 NN N U1 AW N

AW W W W W W W W W W NNNDNDNDNDNDNDNDN = =, s e s e e
S O 0 NN LR WwW N, O N0 0N NN R, O N0 0NN RN O

Particular

Siddhartha Digital
BOD Meeting Payable
NMBA
Jayaram Pandey Payable
Pawan Shrestha
Raj Kumar Timalsina
Robin Lamichane Salary
Banepa stationary
Arthapath
Kusehowar Furniture
Uranus
Sabita Kandel
Koushal Raj Koirala
Dipa Chaudhary
Srijana Basyal
Bipana Dhami
Sushmita Dhital
Umesh Kumar Mandal
Nimbal Infosys
Omi Multipurpose bazar bewastha company limited
Snow Birds IT services
Hari Shrestha
Banking finance and insurance Institute Nepal
Bhagwati Kharel
Koushal Khadka
khyam kanta aryal
sujan dahal
Raju kunwar
Suwash Badal
Yam Lal Pandey
Pradip Magar
Subisu Cable Net
Vision Lumbini tour and travel
Pradip Magar
RR Printer
Bhaktram Chaulagain

Dhruba Prasad Belbase
Hotel Brihaspati
Diktel Branch Salary Payable Ashad
Uranus Tech Nepal Pvt Ltd

Total

JM.d. Q0T/00Q

Amount
2,520.00
145,700.00
20,000.00
73,792.00
5,994.00
10,562.00
15,672.00
4,040.00
8,920.00
3,949.00
59,217.00
7,162.90
7,163.00
10,744.00
4,473.00
6,934.00
12,743.00
16,096.00
434,850.00
11,150.00
4,500.00
19,275.00
23,415.00
5,350.00
7,500.00
17,530.00
17,550.00
22,050.00
35,300.00
37,500.00
4,300.00
22,300.00
34,280.00
9,900.00
704,300.00
36,900.00
6,000.00
9,472.00
11,357.00
501,750.00
2,392,711.00
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taff Salary Payable
SN Particular Amount

1 Dinesh Upadhyaya 7,541.00
2 Nabin Adhikari 6,642.00
3 Uttam Subedi 9,876.00
4 Ram Prasad Upadhyay 7,351.00
5 Shivraj Upadhyaya 6,287.00
6 Pema Lama 17,160.00
7 Min Kumar Dahal 19,352.20
8 Ruka hari Pahadi 4,088.00
9 Jagadish Bhandari 2,273.00
10 Amrita Mahato 13,877.00
11 Bhagwati Dahal 8,550.00
12 Hiru Kumari Shahi 5,444.00
13 Jamuna Bhandari 10,117.00
14 Sarada Panthi 6,480.00
15 Bishal Dhakal 10,905.00
16 Hiru Kumari Shahi 11,411.00
17 Jenisha Punmagar 11,207.00
18 Akshaya Chaudhary 11,994.00
19 Rashmi Acharya Bhattarai 7,139.00
20 Kiran Gharti 6,540.00
21 Laxmi Paudel 14,004.00
22 Amrita Pandey Bonus fy 2073/074 11,724.00
23 Sabitri Devakota Bonus fy 2073/074 5,289.00
24 Laxmi Chahari Bonus fy 2073/074 4,822.00
25 Ramesh Khanal Bonus fy 2073/074 10,837.00
26 Yadav Bhusal Leave fy 2074/075 3,437.00
27 Jamuna Bhandari Leave fy 2074/075 10,730.00
28 Hira kumari shahi leave fy 2075/076 6,099.00
29 Suman Bhandari leave fy 2075/076 4,151.00
30 Bhagwati Daha leave fy 2075/076 5,145.00
31 Jamuna Bhandari 11,197.00
32 Tulsiram poudel 10,373.00
33 Ganga Pandey 1,053.00
34 Santosh Gairhe 1,219.00
35 Laxmi poudel 5,372.00
36 Chama Gc 6,677.00
37 Bhawana Adhikari 2,846.00
38 Hemraj Pun 126,715.00
39 Lalit Jung Sahi 34,397.00
40 Dharmajit Oli 30,149.00
44 Ram Bahadur Budthathoki 10,463.00
45 Rajesh Mishra 27,423.00
46 Bram kumar Bhar 62,172.00
47 Bibas Pandey 90,509.00
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48 Laxmi Prasad Sharma 71,534.00
49 Okhaldhunga Branch( gyanendra sapkota ) 93,690.00
50 Khurkot Branch( Kishan Rai) 6,690.00
51 Sindhuli Branch(Avisek Yadab) 3,451.00
52 Danchhi Branch( Ram Prasad Dulal) 70.00
53 Manthali Branch(Tulasi Dahal) 56.00
54 Pramis Lohani 991.00
55 Puspa Manjari Bhattrai 17,033.00
56 Jayaram Pandey 16,990.00
57 Dinesh BK 4,384.00
58 Meena Sanmani 11,203.00
59 Nabin Dhakal 12,178.00
60 Pradeep Kumar Kurmi 15,124.00
61 Susma Chhinnal 16,121.00
62 Kamal Pun Magar 16,321.00
63 Srijana Rajaure 13,226.00
64 Tulsi Ram Paudel 10,244.00
65 Sujan Khanal 9,279.00
66 Santosh Gaihre 9,483.00
67 Chhama G.C 8,235.00
63 Krishna Bahadur Chaudhary 16,681.00
69 Bhawana Kunwar Adhikari 10,198.00
70 Nirmal Panday 15,954.00
71 Mahesh Prasad Ghorasainee 13,029.00
72 Min Kumar DAhal 17,029.00
73 Shivaraj Upadhaya 17,639.00
74 Rama Gharti 11,719.00
75 Sima Pathak 40,981.00
76 Susma Chhinnal 29,327.00
77 Amrit Pun 34,073.00
78 Amrita Baral 29,320.00
79 Bal Kumar Pariyar 45,141.00
30 Dharmajit Oli 57,208.00
81 Govind Prasad Koirala 13,645.00
82 Hari Prasad Sapkota 54,676.05
33 Hemraj Pun 34,073.00
84 Kishan Rai 33,973.00
85 Lalit Jung Sahi 49,337.00
86 Lokraj Upadhayay 21,682.00
87 Prakash Parajuli 40,268.00
88 Purbaj Gyawali 11,893.00
89 Rebatiram Pandey 4,445.00
90 Sabita Kandel 10,969.00
91 Sadikshya Nepal 3,225.00
92 Sushila Tharu 3,090.00

Total 1,636,915.25
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Table No.1:
Particulars As of Asadh end 2079
No. of Amount
Customers (NRs.)
Accrued Interest Received after Asadh end 2078 till 15 Bhadra 2078 N/A N/A
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio 40327  3,036,309/-
Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project under construction N/A N/A
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision N/A N/A
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected borrowers N/A N/A
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers N/A N/A
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (COVID Loan) extended for upto 1 N/A N/A
year with 5% provisioning
Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan) extended for upto 1 year with N/A N/A

5% provisioning

Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for upto two years as per N/A N/A
clause 41 of NRB Directives 2

Table No.2:
Particulars As of Asadh end 2079
No. of Amount
Customers (NRs.)
Refinance Loan N/A N/A
Business Continuity Loan N/A N/A
Table No.3:

Particulars As of Asadh end 2079

No. of Amount
Customers (NRs.)
Subsidized Loan N/A N/A
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Particulars "As per "As per "Reasons for

Urjaudited Auditgd AT In% Variance"
Financial Financial
Statement” | Statement"
(0.59)

|
1 Total Capital and Liabilities (1.1t01.7) | 5,434,945 5,403,309 | (31,636.1) 0.59

1Nl Paid Up Capital 367143 367143 - -
1.2 Reserve and Surplus 141377.36 92,723 (48,654.5) | (34.41) | Due to difference in net profit
13 Debenture and Bond - - - -
14 Borrowings 3,183,514 3,183,514 - -
15 | Deposits (a.+b.) 1,628,470 | 1,628,470 | - -
a. Member 1,628,470 1,628,470 - - Excess Service charge Deposited to Customer A/C
b. Pubic - - - -
1.6 Income Tax Liability 30,147 29,524 (623.1) (2.07) | Due to difference in net profit
17 Other Liabilities 84,293 101,934 17641.5 2093 Due to adjustment made
2 Total Assets (21t02.7) 5434945 | 5403309 | (31,635.7) | (0.58)
21 Cash and Bank Balance 380,475 380,475 - -
2.2 | Money at Call and Short Notice = = - -
23 Investments 1,000 1,000 - -
24 Loans and Advances 4,965,896 4928284 | (37612.2) | (0.76) Loan Write off Okhaldhunga Branch and Net effect
on Loan loss Provision
2.5 | Fixed Assets 23,291 22,658 (632.2) (2.71) | Diff in Calculating Depreciation
2.6 | Non Banking Assets = = - -
27 Other Assets 64,284 70,892 6,608.7 10.28 Due to adjustment made
3 Profit and Loss Account -
31 Interest Income 740,376 745151 (4,775.0) (0.64) | Okhaldhunga Branch loan write off interest booked
anashad 2079

32 Interest Expense 399,751 399973 (222.6) (0.06) | Due to booked int adjustment

A. Net Interest Income (3.1 - 3.2) 340,625 345177 (4,997.6) (1.47)

33 Fees, Commission and Discount - -

34 Other Operating Income 94732 65,671 29,0609 30.68 | service charge Refund

3.5 | Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (Net) - - -

B.Tolal Operating Income (A+3334+35) | 435357 | 4losd9  |2a0632 583 | |
3.6 Staff Expenses 231,215 226,960 4,255 1.84 Due to adjustment made

37 | OtherOperating Expenses 97145 98,127 (981.40) (1.01) | Dueto adjustment made

C.Operating ProfitBeforeProvison (8.-3.6:37) | 106997 | 85762 | a7sma | 258 | |
38 Provision for Possible Losses 17408 69,057 (51,648.53) | (296.69) | Provision made Double loan and Fake Loan of Okha-

ldhunga Branch

D. Operating Profit (C-3.8) 158,876 122,360 35,522 22.36

39 Non Operating Income/Expenses (Net) | - - - -
310 | Write Back of Provision forPossible Loss | 22,066 31,330 (9,264.51) | (41.99) | adjustment made
E. Profit from Regular Activities (D+3.9+3.10) | 111,655 48,036 69,72116

|31 extraordinaryncome/Expensesthet) - - - -

F. Profit before Bonus and Taxes (E +3.11) 111,655 48,036 69,72116
4,804 6,361.86

312 | Provision for Staff Bonus 1,165 56.98

Calculated while finalising the Financial Statement

‘3.13 ‘ProvisionforTax ‘30,147 21,087 ‘9,059.78 ‘30.05 ‘ ‘

G. Net Profit/Loss (F - 312 - 313) 70,342 22,145 5429951 | 7719 _
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Prasiddha A & ASSOClateS prasiddha.agsociat%s.cn;%gdmuémsgrar:
Chartered Accountants prasiddha.ca@outlook .com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Limited herein referred lo as “company”, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, as on Ashad
32, 2079 (July 16. 2022), the Statement of Profit or Loss, the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, except for the effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the financial position of the company as at Ashad 32,
2079 (July 16, 2022) and of its financial performance, changes in equity, its cash flows for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to the financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) with allowed carveouts.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
on the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the
ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion in the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As per NAS 10: Events after Reporting Period, an entity is required to adjust the amounts recognized in its
financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting report, such events includes all the events up
to the date when the financial statements are authorized for issues. However. company has not adjusted a
discovery of an adjusting events before the financial statements are issued. A case of misappropriation of
loans and deposits was discovered in Kharanitar branch of company where the staff of the same branch has
embezzled amount of NRs. 8,22,65,597, as per the reports of internal study committee of the company’s
management and after the discovery of the issue the cempany has filed a case at District Police Office,
Nuwakot. Had the company adjusted the mentioned event and amount in the financial statements the profit of
the company would have been decreased by the above mentioned amount, with respective changes in the
items of retained earning and reserves presented in the financial statements.

Other Matters

Company has also parallelly prepared separate financial statements in accordance with Unified Directives
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank to microfinance institutions, for the period ending on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16,
2023). We have issued a separate audit report on Falgun 23, 2675 orthe share holders of the company on such
regulatory financial statements. -

%0
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Key Audit Matters o _ _
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the auc_ln
of the financial statements of the current period and include most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified, including those which had greatest effect on overall
audit strategy, allocation of resources in the audit and directing efforts of the engagement team. We
summaries below the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit
opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public
interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters were addressed and our audit results are
based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial
statements as whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Key Audit Matter and Risk

a. Information Technology (IT)
Company’s key financial accounting and
reporting processes are highly dependent
on the automated controls over the

| How the Key Audit Matter was Addressed

Our procedure included:

User access management and control: We tested the

company's IT system. There is a risk that
gaps in the change management,
segregation of duties or user access
management controls (in relation to key
financial accounting and reporting
systems) may undermine our ability to

design, operation and effectiveness of control over
granting, removal and appropriateness of access rights
on the accounting and reporting systems of the
company.

Change management control operation: Obtained and

place some reliance thereon in our audit. | inspected the change management process and, for a
sample of changes in inputs and control functions on
the system, has been reviewed to confirm that changes

had been performed in line with approved decisions.

Segregation of duties: Tested a sample of the
automated controls that are designed to enforce
appropriate segregation of duties.

Test of outputs: We have tested a sample of outputs
particularly interest income and expenses on loans and
advances of the system through manual calculations.

Our results: We considered the change management,

segregation of duties controls and outputs in relation to

— financial accounting and reporting to be acceptable.

- Impairment of loans and advances including interest income on loans and ad gnized
for bad Loans e

(Total Loans and Advances is NRs. 50896,11,251 as on Asahd 32, 2079 and NRs
4,43,42,43,348 as on Ashad 31, 2078; Total Impairment is NRs. 9,76,28,771 as on Asahd 32'
2079; Total Impairment Charge on 2078-79 is NRs. 53,10,879; Total accrued interest income '

(accumulated interest receivable) on loan and advances in 2078-79 is NRs
. : . 63,698,
total interest income NRs. 85,616,718.) e o

«1
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The company policy’s for the allowance
for impairment of loans and advances
have been based on the application of
incurred loss model and NRB regulations,
as applicable. It involves significant
management judgement and estimation. In
addition, assessment of allowances for
impairment is important as carve out
provides for higher of the incurred loss
model or NRB directives’ provisions. The
carrying value of the loans and advances
to customers can be materially misstated
if management’s judgement and
estimation are inappropriate.

Further, interest income of the company
has been recognized on accrual basis as
calculated by accounting system and
following the interest recognition
guidelines. Recognition of interest income
on bad loans involves the judgements on
calculating the net realizable value of
loans and receivables.

Therefore, considering the significance of
the above matter to the financial
statements, we have identified this as a
key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to verify allowances for
impairment of loans and advances included, amongst

others, the following:

Control design. observation and operation: We have
tested operating effectiveness of key controls
established by the company to identify loss events and
for determining the extent of provisioning required
against non-performing loans and advances.

Test of controls on impairment:

The testing of controls included testing of;

e Controls over correct classification of non-
performing loans and advances on time-based

criteria

e Controls over monitoring of loans and advances
with higher risk of default

e Controls over accurate computation and recording
of provisions and

e Controls over the govemnance and approval process
related to provisions, including continuous
reassessment by management

Substantive Procedures:

We selected sample of loan accounts and performed

following substantive procedures:

e Checked repayments of loan installments and tested
classification of nonperforming loans based on the
number of days overdue

e FEvaluated the management’s assessment for
classification of customer’s loan facilities as
performing or nonperforming based on review of

repayment  pattern,  inspection of  credit
documentation and through discussions with the
management.

e Assessment of control over mortgage value of loans
and advances

Independent reperformance:

We evaluated the loss allowance on loan exposure
computed based on NRB Directive which is availed as
allowed by carve-out issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal on NFRS 9.

Our results:
We considered the impairment charge on loans and
advances and interest recognition to be acceptable
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[ [ per NRB Directives. |

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the management report, report of the Board of Directors and
Chairman’s statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we don not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information in materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance i.e. board of directors of the company are responsible for overseeing the
company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As a part of audit in accordance of NSAs, we exercised professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identified and assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statement whether due to fraud or
error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide an opinion. The risk of not detecting an material misstatement resulting
fmm fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omission, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. '

Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control.

Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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E ' Concluded an appropriateness of management use of going concern basis of accounting and, based on audit

' evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condition that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as going concern. If we concluded that a material
uncertainty exists, we were required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosure were inadequate, to modify our opinion. QOur conclusions were
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as going concem.

o Evaluated the overall presentation, structure, and content of financial statement including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statement represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« Obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities to express an opinion on the financial statements. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicated with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identified during our audit.

We also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matter
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The following report as per the Companies Act 2063 and Bank & Financial Institutions Act, 2073, is made for

the company. As per the Companies Act 2063 and Bank & Financial Institutions Act, 2073, based on our audit
carried on sampling basis. we report that, in our opinion.

e We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

e The Statement of Financial Position, Off Balance Sheet Transactions, the Statements of Profit or Loss, the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in
Equity, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to the financial statements
are prepared as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards with allowed carveouts and are in agreement with
the books of account maintained by the company including relevant records relating to preparation of the
aforesaid financial statements the company.

e The proper books of accounts as required by the law has been maintained by the company except some errors
on recording property & equipment and recording of lease rental payments. Since company has parallelly
prepared separate financial statements as per Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank, the adjustments related to
NFRS are not adjusted in books of accounts maintained by the company.

e To the best of our information and according to explanation given to us and so far appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the company, we have not come across cases where board or any
employees of the company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the accounts, or committed
any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest
of company except for the issue of misappropriation done by staff of Okhaldhunga and Surpal branch, for
these events necessary adjustment have been made in books of accounts and adjusted balances are presented
in financial statements. And except the case of Kharanitar branch for which necessary adjustments are not
made in financial statements as mentioned in Basis of Qualified Opinion section of this report. Besides this
we have not come across any other fraudulence in the accounts, based on our sample examination of books.
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e We have not come across any cases where the company has not been functioning as per NRB Directives.

o The returns received from branches, though the statements are not independently audited, were adequate for
the purpose of our audit. N

* Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited has acquired Deurali Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Limited and commenced joint operation since Kartik 30, 2078.

Prasiddha A. & Associates, Chartered Accountants
Kathmandu

Date: Falgun 30, 2079

UDIN: 230314CA01400qSsUs
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Arambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As on 32nd Ashad 2079
(Amount in NPR)
Restated Ashad end  Restated Ashad end
Assets Note Ashad end 2079 2078 2077
Cash and Cash equivalent 4.1 9,268,438 6,277,887 4,536,473
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 26,799,596 22,050,126 50,000
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 344,406,600 195,276,970 96,371,208
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - - -
Other Trading Assets 45 - - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 47 4,991,982,480 4,341,925,456 2,567,644,674
Investment Securities 4.8 1,000,000 1,000,000 21,000,000
Current Tax Assets 49 17,195,932 - 366,477
Investment Property 4.10 - - -
Property and Equipment 411 17,498,270 19,243,494 15,991,000
Goodwill and Intangible assets 412 26,041,100 14,932,574 14,632,227
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 21,726,287 11,516,471 6,425,830
Other Assets 4.14 55,498,256 22,976,143 22,332,518
Total Assets 5,511,416,959 4,635,199,121 2,749,350,406
. Restated Ashad end  Restated Ashad end

Liabilities Note Ashad end 2079 2078 2077
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra 4.16 - - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 417 - - -
Deposits from Customers 418 1,628,470,453 1,271,735,065 885,724,534
Borrowing 4.19 3,183,514,496 2,778,433,202 1,424,473,960
Current Tax Liabilities 49 - 16,204,568 -
Provisions 4.20 43,815,346 5,353,509 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 413 - - -
Other Liabilities 421 114,294,397 70,968,296 38,714,972
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - - -
Total Liabilities 4,970,094,691 4,142,694,640 2,348,913,465
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 367,143,409 286,763,148 263,448,000
Share Premium - - -
Retained Earnings (22,473,023) 57,800,845 21,123,703
Reserves 4.25 196,651,882 147,940,488 115,865,237
Total Equity 541,322,268 492,504,481 400,436,941
Total Liabilities and Equity 5,511,416,959 4,635,199,121 2,749,350,406
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26 57,377,491 75,973,424 96,857,033

Net assets value per share
Signficant Accounting Policies and Notes to the accounts are integral part of financial statement
As per our report of even date attached

Gyanishor Panta Shiva Prasad Gyawali CA. Prasiddha Acharya
Finance & Planning Head Acting CEO Prasiddha A. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Bimal Acharya Keshav Raj Panthi Santosh Pokharel Binod Gyawali Deepak Tiwari
Director Director Director Director Director
Date: 23rd fagun 2079 Jagat Bahadur Pokharel
Place: Kathmandu Chairman
I
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Arambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32nd Ashad 2079

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars Note Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078
Interest Income 4.27 760,645,858 502,953,326
Interest Expense 4.28 399,973,460 199,299,805
Net Interest Income 360,672,399 303,653,521
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 65,671,346 94,992,539
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 9,218,164 4,364,294
Net Fee and Commission Income 56,453,182 90,628,245
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 417,125,581 394,281,766
Net Trading Income 4.31 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 - -
Total Operating Income 417,125,581 394,281,766
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 (735,764) 25,336,581
Net Operating Income 417,861,345 368,945,185
Operating Expense 319,375,615 226,631,083
Personnel Expenses 4.34 228,459,020 176,074,835
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 81,610,089 43,671,621
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 9,306,507 6,384,627
Operating Profit 98,485,729 142,314,103
Non Operating Income 4.37 766,430 -
Non Operating Expense 4.38 39,228,267 5,353,509
Profit before Income Tax Income 60,023,892 136,960,593
Tax Expense 4.39 25,015,776 43,643,881
Current Tax 32,994,910 48,833,021
Deferred Tax (8,285,188) (4,626,326)
Profit for the year 35,008,117 93,316,712
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Financial Institution 35,008,117 93,316,712
Profit for the year 35,008,117 93,316,712
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 9.54 32.54
Diluted earnings per share 9.54 32.54

Signficant Accounting Policies and Notes to the accounts are integral part of financial statement
As per our report of even date attached

Gyanishor Panta Shiva Prasad Gyawali

Finance & Planning Head

Bimal Acharya Keshav Raj Panthi
Director Director

Date: 23rd fagun 2079
Place: Kathmandu

Acting CEO

Santosh Pokharel

Director

Jagat Bahadur Pokharel

Chairman

Binod Gyawali
Director

CA. Prasiddha Acharya
Prasiddha A. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Deepak Tiwari
Director
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Arambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of distributable profit or loss

For the year ended 32nd Ashad 2079
(Amount in NPR)

Particulars Ashad end 2079 Ashad end 2078
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 35,008,117 93,316,712
Appropriations:

a. General reserve 7,001,623 20,745,608

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate social responsibility fund 350,081 965,590
e. Employees' training fund 2,189,422
f. Client Protection Fund 350,081 1,682,497
g. Other
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 25,116,909 69,923,018
Requlatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (14,961,697) (2,965,389)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)

e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+) (10,209,815) (5,090,641)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)

h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+) (4,490,797) (1,083,401)
i. Other (+/-)
Distributable profit or (loss) (4,545,401) 60,783,586
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Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
Fiscal Year 2078/79

General Information of Reporting Entity

Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya sanstha is the leading National level micro finance of
Nepal and operates in 53 districts. As Per Nepal Rastra Bank Merger policy ACLBSL is the
result of merger of Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited, Aarambha Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited and Deurali Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. ACLBSL believes that access
to basic financial services can significantly augment economic opportunities for poor families
and in turn help improve their lives. ACLBSL is committed to creating a distribution network
across underserved sections of society in order to provide easy access to the full portfolio of
microfinance products and services.

Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit and
Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of change of Equity, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to Financial Statements.

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement has been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)-Nepal. NFRSs
conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Reporting Period and approval of Financial Statements

The Micro Finance follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar. The
Micro Finance has prepared the financial statements that comply with NFRS applicable for the
period ending on or after 32" Ashadh 2079, together with the comparative period data as at and
for the period ending 31%Ashadh 2078 as described in its accounting policies. The Micro
Finance has also prepared the opening statement of financial position as at 1% Sharwan, 2077,
the Micro Finance’s date of transition to NFRS.

The accompanied Financial Statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its
board meeting held on 23 Falgun 2079 and have been recommended for approval by
shareholders in the 7" Annual General Meeting.

Functional and Presentation Currency
Financial Statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Micro Finance.

Accounting Convention, Estimates, assumptions and judgements

The Financial Statements of the Micro Finance have been prepared on accrual basis of
accounting except the cash flow information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using direct
method. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Micro Finance is required to apply the accounting policies that are most appropriate for the
circumstance and operating environment. NFRS requires the Micro Finance to exercise
judgement in making choice of specific accounting policies and accounting estimates. The
Micro Finance, while complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting
judgment as having potentially material impact on the financial statements. Description of such
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estimates and significant accounting policies has been given in the relevant sections wherever
they have been applied. These policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except
for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically. The underlying assumption made
while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such revision are recognized
in the period in which the estimates is revised and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been included in the relevant section of the notes
whenever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of
accounting estimates, if any.

2.5 Change in accounting Policies

The same accounting policies are normally adopted in each period and from one period to the
next to maintain the compatibility of the Financial Statements of the entity over time to identify
trends in the financial position, performance and cash flows however the changes when
required by NFRS or due the requirement that results in the financial statements providing more
reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transaction, other events or
conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows are made and
the changes are applied retrospectively. An entity has used the same accounting policies in its
opening NFRS Statement of financial position and throughout all periods presented in its first
NFRS financial statements. Those accounting policies have complied with each NFRS effective
at the end of its first NFRS reporting period except those specifically stated under relevant notes
below.

2.6 New Standard and Interpretation not adopted
The financial statement which is prepared in compliance with all the standards that are issued
and adopted by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal except NFRS 9 in respect of Expected
Credit Loss Model.

2.7 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the
discounting is material.

2.8 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement
of Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss,
unless required or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation
(issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and
Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC)) and as specifically disclosed in the Significant
Accounting Policies of the Microfinance.

2.9 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items
of dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted
by the Nepal Accounting Standard — NAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the
understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the Microfinance.
Understandability of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material
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information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different
natures or functions.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation
If the information is not available and the cost would exceed the benefit derived, such exception
to NFRS Implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

Significant accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by the Microfinance in the preparation of these
financial statements are presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless stated otherwise.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

Investment property is measured initially at cost and subsequently at Fair value.
Liabilities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fair value.
Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.

Impairment of financial asset is measured at fair value and related disposal cost.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the Microfinance. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in notes.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NFRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of
similar items is presented separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or
functions are presented separately unless they are material. Such presentation of line items is
consistent with the format issued by NRB.

Basis of consolidation

The Microfinance does not have any subsidiaries or special purpose entities over which it
exercises control. Hence, only standalone financial statement is prepared.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at vault and money at call and short notice which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value including interest receivable on investment
with maturity up to 3 month or less. Cash and Cash equivalent are measured at amortized cost
in the statement of financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method’ in accordance with
NAS 07- Statement of Cash Flows.

J1at aiffcd ufddcol 31.d. Q0OT/00Q
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3.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition

The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of
financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Microfinance initially recognize loans and advances, deposits; and debt
securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which is the date
that the Microfinance becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or
deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the
Microfinance commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale
of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All financial assets and liabilities are initially
recognized at their cost value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the
respective classification.

Classification

i. Financial Assets
The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value on the basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial
assets are as follows:

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are
held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized
in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, the Microfinance makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent
changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive
income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive
income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value
are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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ii. Financial Liabilities
The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they
are held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized
at profit or loss

b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Measurement
Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Microfinance can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value
Reserve’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on
disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
e It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and

Loss when the Microfinance’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does
not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Microfinance
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above)
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or
the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the
FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different
bases.
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Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when the Microfinance’s right to receive
the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itisaderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

e the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
Company is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes
in credit risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change
in the fair value of liability is always recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts
of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based
on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an
asset is included in the ‘Finance Expenses’ line item.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition

De-recognition of financial assets

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Microfinance neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created
or retained by the Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of

(i) The consideration received and
(if) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
recognized in retained earnings.

The Microfinance enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are
retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of
all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit
price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Microfinance measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for
the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Microfinance uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all
of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:
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Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs
are not based on observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally
the transaction price i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the
Microfinance determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability (Level 01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets (Level 02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or
loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation
is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level
01 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair value is recognized in profit
or loss immediately.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated
reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty
of the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider,
indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active
market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans
rather than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements
and agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment
is measured using the EIR method and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective
impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Microfinance considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at
amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Microfinance first assesses
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3.6

individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are
individually significant and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of
portfolio behavior. In assessing collective impairment, the Microfinance uses historical trends
of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted
for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates,
loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the
Microfinance. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘non-operating income’.

Business Combination

The Microfinance accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when
control is transferred to the Microfinance as per NFRS 3. The consideration transferred in the
acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. The
Microfinance had combined the business as per Merger and Acquisition Bylaws 2073 issued
by central bank during the previous years. However, after the issuance of the Explanatory Note
Accounting for Business Combination dated 2079.04.15, the Carve out no. 3 and 4 on NFRS
3: Business Combination issued by ICAN on 2077.07.25 stands withdrawn and accordingly,
the goodwill has been recognized as per the said guidelines.

Property and Equipment
Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the assets will flow to the Microfinance and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.
The cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost
of self-constructed assets includes followings:

e Cost of materials and direct labor;

e Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their
intended use; and

o Capitalized borrowing cost

Property and equipment are measured at cost (for land using deemed cost at on the transition
date) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Neither class of
the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured
at the reporting date.
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from
the expenditure will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in
working condition are expensed as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in
profit or loss.

b) Grant Assets.

The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a
capital reserve of equal amount. The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this
reserve till the useful life of assets. The balance of capital reserve depicts Written down Value
of the Grant Assets.

c) Depreciation

Property and equipment’s are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property
on Straight Line method over estimated useful lives as determined by the Management.
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of depreciation
is ceased from the earlier of the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is
derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current year and
comparative periods are as follows:

Categories Useful life (Years)
Lease hold Assets 5
Computer & Accessories
Office Equipment
Furniture & fixture
Vehicle
Software

[S2 1 &) [ IR = N SN I

3.7 Income tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which
those temporary differences and tax law carry-forwards become deductible. The Microfinance
considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income
making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however,
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward
period are reduced.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items
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of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date in the countries where the Microfinance operates and generates taxable income. Current
income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or
recoverable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
puUrposes.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date and that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or
the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reversed if it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. The
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Microfinance expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

i. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized in OCI is recognized in OCI. Deferred tax items are

recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.8 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Microfinance deposits consist of money placed into the Microfinance by its customers. These
deposits are made to deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings accounts, margin
deposit accounts, call deposit accounts and current accounts. Details and further disclosures
about deposits have been explained in Note that follows.
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3.9

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

e apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity; or

e present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

o It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; or
o The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the entity.

3.10 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, disposal income etc. Revenue is
recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Microfinance
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The Microfinance applies NAS 18- “Revenue” in
the accounting of revenue, unless otherwise stated. Revenue is not recognized during the period
in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition are as
below:

Interest income

. Interest income are recognized under accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in

the profit or loss for all interest-bearing financial assets except loans categorized as bad
measured at amortized cost. Effective Interest Rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or cash payments through the expected life of financial asset to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset. Effective Interest Rate method is a method of calculating
the amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the relevant
period.

ii. The Microfinance has adopted the alternative treatment as provided by the Carve Out in NFRS

implementation as explained in Note 2.1.2 (e). Resultant of this the Microfinance has excluded
the full amount of upfront loan management fees or commission received on loans and advances
in the calculation of effective interest rate.

Interest income presented in statement of profit and loss includes:
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e Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective
interest rate method. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff loans,
investment in government securities and deposit instruments etc.

e Interest on investment securities measured at fair value, calculated on effective interest rate.

e Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized
over the period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for
those classified at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the
expected life of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the
financial asset or liability by estimating the future cash flows after considering all the
contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes all
amounts expected to be paid or received by the Microfinance including expected early
redemption fees and related penalties and premiums and discounts that are an integral part of
the overall return. Direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of financial instruments is also taken into account in the calculation. Once financial
asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment
loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Microfinance has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate
implicit on individual products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that
the bank charges on the loans and advances (which is in negligible figure), applying EIR method
would not be practical and cost effective. Hence, initial service fees and renewal charges have
been recognized during the period when such income accrue rather than being included within
the component of interest income under EIR method.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset
are included in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income
including management fee, service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission,
commission of issue of letter of credit and guarantee are recognized as the related services are
performed.

Dividend income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment
is established. Dividend income are presented in net trading income, net income from other
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the
underlying classification of the equity instruments.

Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been
designated by management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an
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3.1

3.1
a)

b)

instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following
criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on
them on a different basis.

e The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both,
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

e The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the
statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss
on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in
statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned or incurred is accrued in Interest income or Interest
expense, respectively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded
in other operating income when the right to the payment has been established.

1 Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using
effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be
incidental to the Microfinance’s trading operations and are presented together with all other
changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

2 Employees Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Act pay the amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably
under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions;
e paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
e non-monetary benefits

Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a
fixed contribution to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered
by employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund
or reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan
being due for more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render
the service are discounted at their present value. The following are the defined contribution
plan provided by the Microfinance to its employees:
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a) Employees Provident Fund
In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance are entitled to receive benefits

under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the
Microfinance contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary
plus grades). Microfinance does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits
other than its annual contribution.

ii.Defined Benefit Plan

The Microfinance provides Gratuity Plan and Leave Encashment Plan (in terms of Annual
Leave and Sick Leave) as defined benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-
employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These benefit plans are
funded whereas the Microfinance makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity
plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while
in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined days’
eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.

Further, employees of the Microfinance are entitled to avail Annual Leave and Sick Leave.
The employees can carry forward the un-availed leave and are entitled to encash the
cumulative leave at the time of the retirement. The obligation under these plans are calculated
by a qualified actuary every year using projected unit credit method.

The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Microfinance to its employees:

a) Gratuity

Microfinance provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of
Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance. The plan provides for lump sum payments
to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of
employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each
completed years of service. The Microfinance accounts for the liability for gratuity as per the
actuarial valuation.

b) Leave Salary
The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed /

unutilized leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed/ unutilized
leave partially in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance. The Microfinance
accounts for the liability for accumulated leave as per the actuarial valuation.

c) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Microfinance is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination
benefits to employees as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Termination benefits are recognized if the Microfinances made an offer for voluntary
redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances can
be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months after the reporting
date, they are discounted to their present value.

3.13 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.
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The Microfinance as a Lessee:

Finance leases that transfer to the Microfinance substantially all of the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at
the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recognized in Finance cost in the income statement.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Microfinance will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Leases that do not transfer to the Microfinance substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized
as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the year
in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals are recognized as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

The Microfinance has initially recognized Lease in balance sheet as Right of use of assets
(ROU) and Lease Liability. ROU has been recognized at sum of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.

A lessee may elect not to apply accounting treatment as per NFRS 16 in following cases:
(@) short-term leases; and
(b) leases for which the underlying asset is of low value

If a lessee elects not to apply the accounting treatment as per NFRS 16 due to either short-term
leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee shall recognize the
lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over
the lease term or another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if
that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit.

The lease payment has been discounted at the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is
10%.

The lease assets having the lease liability of equal to or less than 30 lacs present value at
inception has been considered as low value and for those lease the expenses has been recognized
under straight line basis.

The Microfinance as a lessor

Leases in which the Microfinance does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in
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negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

In para 33, lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even
if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor
vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

Microfinance operates its branches and ATMs in number of leased facilities under operating
lease agreements. Operating lease rentals payable are charged to the profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

For the reporting period the Microfinance did not have a finance lease in the capacity of the
lessor or in the capacity of a lessee and it also did not have an operating lease in the capacity of
the lessor.

3.14 Share capital and reserves

The Microfinance classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities
in accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined
as residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares
are classified as equity of the Microfinance and distributions thereon are presented in statement
of changes in equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the
equity.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve,

exchange equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, fair value reserve, revaluation reserve and
other reserves.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in
retained earning computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

3.15 Earnings per share including diluted

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating
to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity
shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date.

J1at aiffcd ufddcol 31.d. Q0OT/00Q
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There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between
the reporting date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would
require the restatement of earnings per share.

3.16 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relating to transactions with any of the Microfinance’s other components, whose operating
results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each
segment and assess its performance.

4. Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as
follows:
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the total amount of cash in hand, balances with other banks
and financial institutions, money at call and short notice.
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077
Cash in hand 9,268,438 6,277,887 4,536,473
Balances with B/Fls - - -
Money at call and short notice - - -
Other - - -
Total 9,268,438 6,277,887 4,536,473
4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities
purchased from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables
from Nepal Rastra Bank has been presented under this account head.
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Al:flsat;t:: d Restated Ashad
2079 2078 end 2077
Statutory balances with NRB 26,799,596 22,050,126 50,000
Statutory balances with BFIs - - -
Securities purchased under resale agreement - - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB - - -
Total 26,799,596 22,050,126 50,000
4.3 Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placement with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions are presented under
this account head.

29



J1at aiffcd ufddcol 31.d. Q0OT/00Q

(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad

2079 end 2078 end 2077
Placement with domestic Fls 344,406,600 195,276,970 96,371,208
Less: Allowances for impairment - - -
Total 344,406,600 195,276,970 96,371,208

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

There were no derivative financial instruments held by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077
Held for trading - - -
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - - -
Others - - -
Held for risk management - - -
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - - -
Others - - -
Total - - -

4.5 Other Trading Assets

There were no trading assets held by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad end
2079 end 2078 2077

Treasury bills - - -
Government bonds - - -
NRB Bonds - - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - - -
Equities - - -
Other - - -
Total - - -
Pledged - - -
Non-pledged - - -

4.6 Loan and Advances to MFIs and Financial Institutions

There were no Loans and Advances provided to MFIs and Financial Institutions during the
year.
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(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad  Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077
Loans to microfinance institutions - - -
Loans to Fls - - -
Loans to cooperative - - -
Less: allowance for impairment - - -
Other - - -
Less: Allowances for impairment - - -
Total - - -
4.6.1: Allowances for Impairment
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077

Balance at Shrawan 1 - - -
Impairment loss for the year: - - -
Charge for the year - - -
Recoveries/reversal - - -
Amount written off - - -
Balance at Asar end - - -

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs as well
as Bills Purchased and discounted less the amount of impairment allowances has been presented.
Loan to employees provided according to employee bye-laws of the Microfinance has also been
presented under this head.

(Amount in

NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad

2079 end 2078 end 2077

Loan and advances measured at 5,089,611,251 4,434,243,348 2,635,438,409
amortized cost

Less: Impairment allowances 97,628,771 92,317,892 67,793,735

Collective impairment 14,341,437 13,159,505 25,101,580

Individual impairment 83,287,334 79,158,387 42,692,155

Net amount 4,991,982,480 4,341,925,456 2,567,644,674

Loan and advances measured at - - -

FVTPL
Total 4,991,982,480 4,341,925,456 2,567,644,674




4.7.1 Allowances for Impairment
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(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Al:;elsat(z;t:f d Restated Ashad
2079 2078 end 2077
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 92,317,892 67,793,735 26,336,552
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 29,828,279 57,939,961 41,457,183
Recoveries/reversal during the year 24,517,400 33,415,804
Write-offs
Other movement
Balance at Asar end 97,628,771 92,317,892 67,793,735
Total allowances for impairment 97,628,771 92,317,892 67,793,735
4.8 Investment securities
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad RAezﬁgsd Restated Ashad
end 2079 end 2078 end 2077
Investment securities measured at amortized cost - - 20,000,000
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000 1,000,000 21,000,000
4.8.1 Investment securities measured at amortized cost
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad Al:le:;t:: d Restated Ashad
end 2079 2078 end 2077

Debt securities
Government bonds
Government treasury bills
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - - -

Other - - 20,000,000
Less: specific allowances for impairment - - -
Total - - 20,000,000

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

1

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077
Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities - - -
Unquoted equity securities 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
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4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad
end 2078 Restated Ashad end 2077
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in
quoted equity
Total - - - - - -
Investment in
unquoted
equity
Nepal Finsoft
Company
Ltd.10,000
shares of
Rs.100 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
4.9 Current Tax Assets and Liabilities
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077

Current tax assets 50,648,404 32,628,453 13,831,556
Current year income tax assets 50,648,404 32,628,453 13,831,556
Tax assets of prior periods - - -
Current tax liabilities 33,452,472 48,833,021 13,465,079
Current year income tax liabilities 33,452,472 48,833,021 13,465,079
Tax liabilities of prior periods - - -
Total 17,195,932 (16,204,568) 366,477

4.10 Investment Properties

This also includes land, land and building acquired as non-banking assets by the Microfinance
but not sold. After The Microfinance has measured Investment properties are measured at cost,
however no deprecation has been charged as no such properties has been used by the
Microfinance. There were no Investment properties held by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad Restated Restated Ashad
end Ashad end end 2077
2079 2078

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2078
Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at cost
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(Amount in NPR)

Ashad Restated
end Ashad end
2079 2078

Restated Ashad
end 2077

Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2078
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount

Total
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4.13 Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

(Amount in
NPR)
Ashad end 2079
Deferred Net Deferred
Deferred
Tax Assets Tax Tax Assets/
Liabilities (Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following
items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls -
Loans and advances to customers -
Investment properties -
Investment securities -
Property & equipment 715,768 715,768
Employees' defined benefit plan 12,996,589 12,996,589
Lease liabilities 1,919,346 1,919,346
Provisions -
Other temporary differences 6,094,583 6,094,583
Deferred tax on temporary differences 21,726,287 - 21,726,287
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of
2078/79 21,726,287
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2078 (11,516,471)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 10,209,815
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or
loss (8,285,188)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive
income (1,924,627)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in
equity -
Restated Ashad end 2078
Deferred Net Deferred
Deferred
Tax Assets Tax Tax Assets/
Liabilities (Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following
items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls -
Loans and advances to customers -
Investment properties -
Investment securities -
Property & equipment 346,042 (346,042)
Employees' defined benefit plan 7,231,637 7,231,637
Lease liabilities 2,037,024 2,037,024
Provisions -
Other temporary differences 2,593,853 2,593,853
Deferred tax on temporary differences 11,862,514 346,042 11,516,471

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
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Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of

2077/78 11,516,471
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2077 (6,425,830)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 5,090,641
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or
loss (4,626,326)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive
income (464,315)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in
equity -

Restated Ashad end 2077

Deferred Net Deferred
Deferred
Tax Tax Assets/
Tax Assets

Liabilities (Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following

items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls -
Loans and advances to customers -
Investment properties -
Investment securities -

Property & equipment 739,926 (739,926)
Employees' defined benefit plan 3,889,615 3,889,615
Lease liabilities 2,150,979 2,150,979
Provisions -
Other temporary differences 1,125,162 1,125,162
Deferred tax on temporary differences 7,165,756 739,926 6,425,830

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of
2076/77 6,425,830

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2076 -

Origination/(Reversal) during the year 6,425,830

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or

loss (5,683,479)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive

income (742,352)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in

equity -

q0%
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3.d. 2Q00T/00Q
4.14 Other assets

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Al:flztgt:: d Restated Ashad

2079 2078 end 2077

Assets held for sale - - -
Other non-banking assets - - -
Bills receivable - - -
Accounts receivable 853,186 1,582,545 1,514,709
Accrued income - - -
Prepayments and deposit 79,971 436,279 300,789
Income tax deposit - - -
Deferred employee expenditure 397,742 728,260 1,203,244
Cash in transit theft 118,425 118,425 -
Receivable on Surpal branch misappropriation 4,619,916 5,235,084 -
Receivable on Okhaldhunga branch misappropriation 39,077,005 - -
Other 10,352,011 14,875,549 19,313,776
Total 55,498,256 22,976,143 22,332,518

4.15 Due to Bank and financial institution

There was no due to Bank and financial institution by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end

Restated Ashad end
2078

Restated Ashad end

2077

Borrowing from BFIs
Settlement and clearing accounts

Other

Total

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

There was no due to Nepal Rastra Bank by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end
2079

Restated Ashad
end 2078

Restated Ashad
end 2077

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Other payable to NRB

Total
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4.17 Derivative financial instruments
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There were no Derivative financial instruments held by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end
2079 2078 2077
Held for trading - - -
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - - -
Others - - -
Held for risk management - - -
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - - -
Others - - -
Total - - -
4.18 Deposits from Customers
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end 2079 Restateczl (;A%had end Restatetzl (;?s7had end
Institutions customers: - - -
Term deposits - - -
Call deposits - - -
Other - - -
Individual customers: 1,628,470,453 1,271,735,065 885,724,534
Term deposits 42,022 52,700 50,040
Saving deposits - - -
Savings from Members 1,628,428,431 1,271,682,365 885,674,494
Other - - -
Total 1,628,470,453 1,271,735,065 885,724,534
4.19 Borrowing
(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - - -
Other licensed Institutions 3,183,514,496 2,778,433,202 1,424,473,960
Other - - -
Sub total 3,183,514,496 2,778,433,202 1,424,473,960
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - -
Other Institutions - - -
Sub total - - -
Total 3,183,514,496 2,778,433,202 1,424,473,960
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4.20 Provisions

There was no provision made by the Microfinance during the year.

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad end
2079 end 2078 2077
Provisions for redundancy - - -
Provision for restructuring - - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - -
Onerous contracts - - -
Other 43,815,346 5,353,509 -
Total 43,815,346 5,353,509 -
4.20.1 Movement in Provision

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end

2079 2078 2077
Balance at Shrawan 1 5,353,509 - -
Provisions made during the year 39,077,005 5,353,509 -
Provisions used during the year - - -
Provisions reversed during the year 615,168 - -
Unwind of discount - - -
Balance at Asar end 43,815,346 5,353,509 -
4.21 Other liabilities

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Alzﬁitgtee:d Restated Ashad

2079 2078 end 2077

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 20,450,118 10,228,922 5,728,871
Liability for long-service leave 22,871,846 13,876,534 7,236,512
Short-term employee benefits 856,528 1,810,819 1,361,091
Bills payable - - -
Creditors and accruals 43,464,910 3,197,330 8,885,004
Interest payable on deposit 993,787 1,029,916 984,755
Interest payable on borrowing 5,598,383 4,233,093 809,656
Liabilities on deferred grant income - - -
Unpaid Dividend - - -
Liabilities under Finance Lease 5,695,861 6,203,682 6,631,773
Employee bonus payable 7,449,708 16,083,130 5,293,101
Other 6,913,256 14,304,868 1,784,208
Total 114,294,397 70,968,296 38,714,972

904



J1at aiffcd ufddcol 31.d. Q0OT/00Q

4.21.1 Defined benefit obligation

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Al:fls;;t:: d Restated Ashad

2079 2078 end 2077
Present value of funded obligations 20,450,118 10,228,922 5,728,871
Total present value of obligations 20,450,118 10,228,922 5,728,871
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Present value of net obligations 20,450,118 10,228,922 5,728,871
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations 20,450,118 10,228,922 5,728,871

4.21.2 Plan Assets

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078 Restated Ashad end 2077

Equity securities - - -
Government bonds - - -
Bank deposit - - -
Other - - -
Total - - -

4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad end

2079 end 2078 2077
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 10,228,922 5,728,871 886,732
Actuarial losses 6,415,424 1,547,716 2,474,505
Benefits paid by the plan 270,000
Current service costs and interest 4,075,772 2,952,335 2367634
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 20,450,118 10,228,922 5,728,871

4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end
2079 2078 2077

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 - - -
Contributions paid into the plan - - -
Benefits paid during the year - - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - -

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end - - -
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4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end
2079 2078 2077
Current service costs 3,256,198 2,493,733 2,287,828
Interest on obligation 819,574 458,602 79,806
Expected return on plan assets - - -
Total 4,075,772 2,952,335 2,367,634

4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078 Restated Ashad end 2077

Actuarial (gain)/loss 6,415,424 1,547,716

2,474,505

Total 6,415,424 1,547,716

2,474,505

4.21.7 Actuarial assumptions

(Amount in NPR)

Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end

Ashad end 2079 2078 2077

Discount rate 11% 9% 9%
Expected return on plan asset 0% 0% 0%
Future salary increases 5% 5% 5%

Up to 35 years:

20%

& above 35 years: Up to 35 years: 20% Up to 35 years: 20%
Withdrawal rate 10% & above 35 years: 10% & above 35 years: 10%

4.21.8: Liability for long-service leave

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077
Present value of long-service leave 22,871,846 13,876,534 7,236,512
Total present value of long-service leave 22,871,846 13,876,534 7,236,512
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Present value of net long-service leave 22,871,846 13,876,534 7,236,512
Recognized liability for long-service leave 22,871,846 13,876,534 7,236,512
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4.21.9: Plan assets

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078 Restated Ashad end 2077

Equity securities - - -
Government bonds - - -
Bank deposit - - -
Other - - )

Total - - -

4.21.10: Movement in the present value of Liability for Long service leave

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end
2079 2078 2077
Long service leave at Shrawan 1 13,876,534 7,236,512 4,260,668
Actuarial losses 5,253,677 3,347,921 1,276,035
Benefits paid by the plan 1,887,303 503,646 1520832
Current service costs and interest 5,628,938 3,795,747 3220641
Long service leave at Asar end 22,871,846 13,876,534 7,236,512

4.21.11: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end
2079 2078 2077

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 - - -
Contributions paid into the plan - - -
Benefits paid during the year - - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - -

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end - - -

4.21.12: Amount recognized in profit or loss

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end
2079 2078 2077
Current service costs 4,464,979 3,167,125 2,905,618
Interest on obligation 1,163,959 628,622 315,023
Actuarial (gain)/loss 5,253,677 3,347,921 1,276,035
Expected return on plan assets - - -
Total 10,882,615 7,143,668 4,496,676
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4.21.13: Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078 Restated Ashad end 2077

Actuarial (gain)/loss - - -

Total - - -

4.21.14: Actuarial assumptions

(Amount in NPR)

Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end

Ashad end 2079 2078 2077

Discount rate 11% 9% 9%
Expected return on plan asset 0% 0% 0%
Future salary increases 5% 5% 5%

Up to 35 years:

20%

& above 35 years: Up to 35 years: 20% Up to 35 years: 20%
Withdrawal rate 10% & above 35 years: 10% & above 35 years: 10%

4.22 Debt securities issued

No debt securities have been issued by the Microfinance.

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077

Debt securities issued designated as at fair
value through profit or loss - - -

Debt securities issued at amortized cost - - -

Total - - -

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities
No Subordinated Liabilities has been issued by the Microfinance.

(Amount in
NPR)

Restated Restated
Ashad Ashad end
end 2078 2077

Ashad
end 2079

Redeemable preference shares - - -
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities

component) - - -
Other - - -

Total - - -

10%
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4.24 Share Capital

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Al:;s;gt:f d Restated Ashad
2079 2078 end 2077

Ordinary shares 367,143,409 286,763,148 263,448,000
Convertible preference shares (equity component - - -
only)

Irredeemable preference shares (equity - - -
component only)

Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - -
Total 367,143,409 286,763,148 263,448,000

4.24.1 Ordinary Shares

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad end

2079 end 2078 2077
Authorized Capital
75,00,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 750,000,000 420,000,000 420,000,000
Issued capital
36,71,434 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 367,143,409 286,763,148 263,448,000
Subscribed and paid up capital
36,71,434 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 367,143,409 286,763,148 263,448,000
Total 367,143,409 286,763,148 263,448,000
4.24.2 Ordinary share ownership
(Amount in
NPR)
Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end
Ashad end 2079 2078 2077
% Amount % Amount % Amount

Domestic
ownership
Nepal Government 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
"A" class licensed 5.95% 21,843,767 487% 13,976,340 4.87% 12,840,000
institution
Other licensed 9.98% 36,641,341 11.98% 34,358,503 11.98% 31,565,000
institutions
Other Institutions 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Other 49.71% 182,521,440 46.79% 134,182,965 46.79% 123,273,280
Public Shareholders 34.36% 126,136,861 36.35% 104,245,340 36.35% 95,769,720
Foreign Ownership 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Total 100.00% 367,143,409 100.00% 286,763,148 100.00% 263,448,000
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4.24.3 Details of Shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

As at 32nd Ashad 2077 As at 31st Ashad 2078 As at 31st Ashad 2079
No. of No. of No. of

Name shares % Amt shares % Amt shares % Amt
Central Finance Ltd 128,400 | 4.87 | 12,840,000 | 139,763 | 4.87 | 13,976,340 | 167,186 | 4.55 | 16,718,586
L(:‘n”;a[‘f‘dse""a ikash 96,300 | 3.66 | 9,630,000 | 104,823 | 3.66 | 10,482,255 | 125389 | 3.42 | 12,538,940
Janta Bank Ltd 64,200 | 2.44 | 6,420,000 | 69,882 | 2.44 | 6,988,170 | 83593 | 2.28 | 8,359,293
ggm(“g dcommem'a' 64,200 | 2.44 | 6,420,000 | 69,882 | 2.44 | 6,988,170 | 83593 | 2.28 | 8,359,293
S 53,500 | 2.03 | 5,350,000 | 58235 | 2.03| 5823475| 69,661 | 1.90 | 6,966,078
Development Bank Ltd
Deepak Tiwari 48321 | 1.83| 4832100 | 52597 | 1.83| 5259741 | 62,917 | 1.71| 6,291,735
Dipesh Upreti 40,949 | 155 | 4,094,936 | 44573 | 1.55| 4457,338 | 53319 | 1.45| 533189
Shobha Upreti 31,140 | 1.18 | 3,114,020 | 33,896 | 1.18 | 3,389,611 | 40547 | 1.10 | 4,054,674
Tinau Bikash Bank Ltd | 26,750 | 1.02 | 2,675,000 | 29,117 | 1.02 | 2,911,738 | 34,830 | 0.95 | 3,483,039
Indira Adhikari 22872 | 0.87 | 2,287,194 | 24,896 | 087 | 2489611 | 29,781 | 0.81 | 2,978,088
Anita Pandit 21369 | 0.81 | 2,136,862 | 23260 | 081 | 2325974 | 27,823 | 0.76 | 2,782,345
Dhurbalal Pande 17,127 | 065 | 1,712,711 | 18643 | 0.65| 1,864,286 | 22,301 | 0.61 | 2,230,071
Prashant Upadhyaya 13,852 | 053 | 1,385202 | 15078 | 053 | 1,507,792

4.24.4 Proposed Distributions (Dividend and Bonus Share)

The Board has recommended not to distribute dividend for the reported Fiscal Year 2078/79.

4.25 Reserves

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad end
2079 end 2078 2077

Statutory general reserve 46,533,034 39,242,658 18,497,050
Capital reserve 3,840,000 - -
Exchange equalization reserve - - -
Investment adjustment reserve - - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 1,565,511 1,200,993 670,737
Client Protection Fund 27,797,794 27,744,789 25,001,432
Capital redemption reserve - - -
Regulatory reserve 122,032,471 82,567,604 73,428,172
Assets revaluation reserve - - -
Fair value reserve - - -
Dividend equalization reserve - - -
Actuarial gain (7,306,352) (2,815,555) (1,732,154)
Special reserve - - -
Debenture redemption reserve - - -
Other reserve 2,189,422 - -
Total 196,651,882 147,940,488 115,865,237
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4.25.1 General Reserve

General Reserve is created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent
to 20% of the net profit earned during the year until the reserve is twice the paid-up share capital of the
Microfinance after which 10% of the net profit earned during the year shall be set aside as General Reserve.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra
Bank.

4.25.2 Client protection fund

As per Clause 6.14 of Microfinance Directive, 2078 issued by NRB, every microfinance must allocate 1%
of its profit to Client Protection Fund.

4.25.3 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating profit of 1% has been
presented under this account head.

4.25.4 Exchange Equalization Reserve

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve is the reserve created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial
Institutions Act 2073 equivalent to 25% of the foreign exchange gain realized on the translation of foreign
currency to the reporting currency during the year other than Indian Rupees.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra
Bank other than to set off revaluation loss incurred, if any during the year.

4.25.5 Capital Reserve

The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital
reserve of equal amount. The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this reserve till the useful
life of assets. The balance of capital reserve depicts Written down Value of the Grant Assets.

4.25.6 Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are
measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until
the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets has
been presented under this account head.

4.26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

(Amount in NPR)
Ashad end Restated Ashad end Restated Ashad end

2079 2078 2077
Contingent liabilities - - -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - -
Capital commitment - - -
Lease Commitment 57,377,491 75,973,424 96,857,033
Litigation - - -
Others - - -
Total 57,377,491 75,973,424 96,857,033
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4.26.2 Lease commitments

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078 end 2077

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease, where the institution is lessee

Not later than 1 year 16,678,409 18,595,933 20,883,609
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 38,296,382 52,529,558 63,712,757
Later than 5 years 2,402,700 4,847,933 12,260,666

Sub total 57,377,491 75,973,424 96,857,033

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable finance lease, where institution is lessee

Not later than 1 year - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -
Later than 5 years - - -

Sub total - - -

Grand total 57,377,491 75,973,424 96,857,033

4.27 Interest Income

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Cash and cash equivalent - -
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Placement with bank and financial institutions 4,139,766 2,306,959
Loan and advances to financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 751,734,277 500,646,367

Investment securities - -
Loan and advances to staff - -
Other 4,771,816 -
Total interest income 760,645,858 502,953,326

4.28 Interest Expenses

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Due to bank and financial institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Deposits from customers 76,529,154 56,105,767
Borrowing 323,444,305 143,194,037
Debt securities issued Subordinated liabilities - -
Other - -
Total interest expense 399,973,460 199,299,805
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4.29 Fees and Commission Income

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Loan administration fees 55,936,413 88,285,439
Service fees 4,764,673 1,332,075
Commitment Fees - -
Card Issuance Fees - -
Prepayment and swap fees - -

Remittance fees 4,240,130 3,802,651
Brokerage Fees - -

Other fees and commission income 730,130 1,572,374
Total fees and Commission Income 65,671,346 94,992,539

4.30 Fees and Commission Expense

(Amount in NPR)
Restated Ashad
end 2078

Brokerage - -
ATM management fees - -
Visa Master card Fees - -
Guarantee Commission Fees - -
Brokerage - -
DD/TT/Swift Fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other fees and commission expense 9,218,164 4,364,294
Total Fees and Commission Expense 9,218,164 4,364,294

Ashad end 2079

4.31 Net trading income

There was no trading income earned by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction - -
Other Net trading income - -
Other - -
Total Net Trading Income - -
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4.32 Other operating income
There was no other operating income earned by the Microfinance during the year.

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Foreign exchange revaluation gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments - -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Other - -
Total Operating Income - -
4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end  Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer (735,764) 24,519,039
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and - -
financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - 817,542
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties . .
Total (735,764) 25,336,581

4.34 Personnel Expense

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Salary Allowances 196,862,575 141,691,688
Gratuity expense 4,075,772 2,952,335
Provident fund 7,144,727 5,218,468
Uniform - -
Training & development expense 2,170,403 2,521,361
Leave encashment 5,628,938 3,795,747
Medical Insurance 323,088 365,971
Employees incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRSs 330,518 603,251
Other expenses related to staff 5,253,677 3,347,921
Sub Total 221,789,698 160,496,742
Employees bonus 6,669,321 15,578,093
Grand Total 228,459,020 176,074,835
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(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end Restated Ashad
2079 end 2078

Directors' fee 603,000 473,500
Directors' expense 377,903 140,270
Auditors' remuneration 395,500 339,000
Other audit related expense - 1,025,292
Professional and legal expense 1,059,063 -
Office administration expense 59,982,497 27,538,610
Operating lease expense 18,594,614 13,511,040
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense - -
Client Protection expenses - -
Onerous lease provisions - -
Finance expense -Right of use of assets 597,512 643,909
Other - -
Total 81,610,089 43,671,621

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Water and electricity 1,422,054 877,208
Repair and maintenance - -
(a) Building - -
(b) Vehicle 1,207,488 487,181
(c) Computer and accessories - -
(d) Office equipment and furniture 834,490 335,700
(e) Other - -
Insurance 29,071,137 7,409,707
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 2,807,748 2,658,015
Printing and stationery 3,895,751 5,005,501
News paper, books and journals 1,800 17,550
Advertisement 221,083 242,540
Donation - -
Security expense - -
Deposit and loan guarantee premium - -
Travel allowance and expense 8,218,756 3,794,155
Entertainment 615,795 465,738
Annual/special general meeting expense 498,620 264,057
Other -
(a) Registration and renewals 1,996,810 727,141
(b) Office Furniture and Fixtures 1,090,467 1,493,800
(c) Fuel Expense 4,780,100 1,757,136
(d) Software annual fees 2,081,460 1,127,350
(e) Other 1,238,938 875,831
Total 59,982,497 27,538,610
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The Microfinance has various operating lease ranging from 2 years to 10 years. The leases are renewable
by mutual consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses for leases recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss for the year is NPR. 18,594,614. The interest on lease liability recognized is NPR. 597,512
and the deprecation of right of use assets is NPR. 735,918 during FY 2078/079.

4.36 Depreciation & Amortization

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Depreciation on property and equipment 7,973,703 5,846,195
Depreciation of Right of use of assets 735,918 735,918
Depreciation on investment property - -

Amortization of intangible assets 596,886 302,514
Total 9,306,507 6,884,627

4.37 Non-operating income

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Recovery of loan written off - -
Other income 766,430 -
Total 766,430 -

4.38 Non-Operating Expenses

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Loan written off - -
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -

Provision on other assets 39,228,267 5,353,509
Other expense - -
Total 39,228,267 5,353,509

4.39 Income tax Expense

(Amount in NPR)

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Current tax expense 32,994,910 48,833,021
Current year 32,994,910 48,833,021
Adjustments for prior years - -
Deferred tax expense (7,979,135) (5,189,140)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (7,979,135) (5,189,140)

Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 25,015,776 43,643,881
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4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Micro Finance Institutions

Ashad end 2079 Restated Ashad end 2078

Profit before tax 60,023,892 136,960,593
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 18,007,168 41,088,178
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 19,928,731 7,143,636

for tax purpose
Less: Tax effect on exempt income

Add/less: Tax effect on other items (4,940,988) (403,169)
Total income tax expense 32,994,910 47,828,645
Effective tax rate 54.97% 34.92%

5. Disclosures and Additional Information
5.1 Risk Management
The Micro Finance in compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive No.6 “Corporate Governance” has

established a Risk Management Committee. Such committee comprised of following members as on date
of the report:

S.N. Members of Risk Management Committee Designation
1 Bimal Acharya Coordinator
2 Deepak Tiwari Member

3 Khyamkanta Aryal Secretary

The committee shall meet at least once every 3 months and also as per necessity based on circumstances.
The committees play the advisory roles in the issues of risk of the Micro Finance after overseeing the
various risk relating to liquidity, credit, operation, capital etc. The committee’s major function is to identify
and minimize the Liquidity Risk, Credit Risk, Operating Risk, Marketing Risk and IT Risk

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises of following subcommittees which represents by all key Business
and Function Heads of Micro Finance that manages Micro Finance’s operation on day to day basis:

a. Procurement Committee

S.N. Members Designation
1 Kiran Kaphle Coordinator
2 Gyanishor Panta Member

3 Santosh Thapa Secretary

1=
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5.4

b. Human Resource Committee

S.N. Members Designation
1 Kiran Kaphle Coordinator
2 Gyanishor Panta Member

3 Bimal Khanal Secretary

c. Finance Committee

S.N. Members Designation
1 Laxmi Prasad Sharma Coordinator
2 Bimal Khanal Member

3 Khyamkanta Aryal Member

4 Gyanishor Panta Member

5 Santosh Thapa Secretary

Aforementioned sub-committee meets as and when required. The strategies of Micro Finance are decided
and monitored on regular basis and decision are taken collectively by this committee.

Credit Risk

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained
from Micro Finance as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk.

A loan application form which has been used by Micro Finance, includes all the relevant data and
information required for assessment of borrowers’ background, business and experience, financial
statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.

The credit policy of Micro Finance has been guided by NRB Directives, Sector wise/ Product wise
reporting of risk assets on monthly basis, reporting of top borrowers and their analysis.

Market Risk

Market Risk includes risk arises due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our
exposure to market risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions.

Micro Finance focuses on risk management by enacting with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by
NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The market
risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market rate risk set by ALCO.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity has been actively monitored at an appropriate frequency. Routine reporting, Trend Analysis and
Budget Variance Analysis was in place to BOD and through the ALCO and Risk Management Committee.

Daily MIS, Daily Liquidity Sheet, CRR Report and Monthly Liquidity Gap Report have been used for the
insight of liquidity risk information to the management.
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5.5 Capital Management
The company’s objective is to prudently manage shareholder capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholder, undertake share buybacks, issue new shares and make borrowings in the short term.
5.6 Segment Analysis
The Microfinance’s operation is managed centrally through Head Office. All strategic, financial and
operational policies and operations are controlled and directed from the head office. The Microfinance
operates in seven proveniences though has a single jurisdiction details are mentioned below:
SN | Particulars Province Province Province Province Province Province Province Total
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Interest 76,656,357 | 72,050,340 | 100,826,627 | 52,439,165 | 359,042,688 | 74,841,250 | 4,519,376 | 740,375,802
1 | Income
Commission - - 4,240,130 - - - - 4,240,130
2 | Income
Other 10,417,668 | 9,980,444 | 13,341,421 6,831,014 | 42,399,303 | 7,923,778 608,539 | 91,502,166
Operating
3 | Income
Total 87,074,025 | 82,030,784 | 118,408,178 | 59,270,179 | 401,441,991 | 82,765,028 | 5,127,915 | 836,118,098
4 | Income
Interest 53543525 | 47,052,858 | 383,378,088 | 31,329,927 | 200,601,217 | 45,370,510 | 2,790,485 | 764,066,611
5 | Expenses
Staff 21,331,288 | 18,222,812 | 78,330,339 14,893,127 | 81,163,229 | 16,272,482 | 1,110,600 | 231,323,877
6 | Expenses
Other 5220,525 | 4,451,088 | 61,594,474 3,661,243 | 18,546,581 | 3,664,116 245376 | 97,383,403
operating
7 | Expenses
Total 80,095,338 | 69,726,758 | 523,302,901 | 49,884,297 | 300,311,026 | 65,307,108 | 4,146,461 | 1,092,773,891
8 | Expenses
Loan and 595,653,219 522,379,423 | 681,714,712 | 365,834,322 | 2,401,787,144] 460,539,219 | 32,251,947 | 5,060,159,987
9 | Advance
98,227,249 | 83,664,398 | 215,747,477 | 128,112,684 | 973518471 | 122,202,050 | 6,998,124 | 1,628,470,453
10 | Deposit
Total 9,277 8,146 13,006 7,109 54,644 9,336 655 102,173
11 | Member
Segment 639,158,503 546,085,132 | 4,538,349,062 | 386,418,994 | 2,495,966,004] 492,056,495 | 34,005,615 | 9,132,039,804
12 | Assets
Segment 639,158,503| 546,085,132 | 4,538,349,062 | 386,418,994 | 2,495,966,004| 492,056,495 | 34,005,615 | 9,132,039,804
13 | Liabilities

Note: The above table is compiled on the basis of system generated data which may not tally with final NFRS financials.

qro

5.7 Share options and share based payment

5.8

There is no share-hased payment made by the Microfinance.

Contingent liabilities and commitment

The Microfinance discloses amount as contingent liabilities when it undertakes to make a payment on
behalf of its customers for guarantee issued as part of its transactions for which no obligation will arise at
the end of the reporting period. Other contingent liability can arise in respect of taxes and other regulatory
liabilities. Though Micro Finance has been complying with applicable laws and regulation it may be
subject to regulatory action which may result in material financial liability to the Micro Finance and are
difficult to predict. None of such material claim exist at the end of reporting date.

When the Micro Finance has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a
customers in the form of loans and advances, future guarantee and the Micro Finance has not made the
payment at the end of reporting period, those instruments are included in the financial statements as
commitment.

JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q
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Contingent liabilities and commitments have been disclosed in Note 4.26.

5.9 Related Parties Disclosures

5.9.1

Followings are the related parties to the Micro Finance as per NAS 24” Related Parties Disclosures”:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The key management
of the Microfinance includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher-
level employee of the Microfinance. The name of the key management personnel who were holding various
positions in the office during the year (As at Ashad end 2079) were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel Post

Laxmi Prasad Sharma CEO

Shiva Prasad Gyawali DCEO

Kiran Kaphle DCEO

Gyanishor Panta Manager

Bimal Khanal Manager
Khyamkanta Aryal Assistant Manager
Yubaraj Poudel Sharma Assistant Manager
Santosh Thapa Officer

Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and allowances are provided
to Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel (KMP). Salary and
Allowances paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the Microfinance with
him whereas compensation paid to other member of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and
decisions made by management time to time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash
benefits like vehicle facility, subsidized rate employees’ loan, and termination benefits are also provided to
KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (Director’s only) were as follows:

Particulars 2078/079 2077/078

Director’s Fee (including all BoD level committee) 603,000 473,500
Other Expenses 377,903 140,270
Total 980,903 613,770

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors were as
follows:

S.N. | Name Position Remuneration

1 Laxmi Prasad Sharma CEO 37,67,104
2 Shiva Prasad Gyawali DCEO 11,05,069
3 Kiran Kaphle DCEO 15,94,000
4 Gyanishor Panta Manager 11,00,285
5 Bimal Khanal Manager 11,07,785
6 Khyamkanta Aryal Assistant Manager 10,97,768
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Name Position Remuneration
7 Yubaraj Poudel Sharma Assistant Manager 10,97,768
8 Santosh Thapa Officer 738,439

Besides above remuneration, vehicle facilities were provided to key management personnel. Above amount
also includes the retirement facilities.

5.10 Goodwill on Business Combination

During the fiscal year 2076/77, the Microfinance had merged with erstwhile Aarambha Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited (AMFI) and commenced joint operations from 22 Ashad 2077. The Microfinance has
issued 644,280 units of shares to shareholders of AMFI as purchase consideration on the basis of swap ratio
of 1 shares of ACLBSL for each share of AMFI recommended by an independent valuator in accordance
with Merger and Acquisition Bylaw 2073 issued by the Central Bank. Similarly, during the fiscal year
2078/79, the Microfinance had acquired Deurali Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd and commenced joint
operations from 30 Kartik 2078. Post-acquisition, Deurali shareholders had received 0.84 shares of
ACLBSL for each share of Deurali(swap ratio of 84%). The Microfinance had adopted conventional way
of booking swap gain from merger and acquisition as per point 9(Kha) of NRB Merger and Acquisition
Bylaws, 2073 then. However, after the issuance of this Explanatory Note, the Carve-out no. 3 and 4 on
NFRS 3: Business Combination issued by ICAN on 2077.07.25 stands withdrawn and revised treatment is
applicable for Goodwill computation.

Para 32 of NFRS 3 states that “The acquirer shall recognize goodwill as of the acquisition date measured
as the excess of (a) over (b) below:

(a) The consideration transferred measured in accordance with this NFRS, which generally requires
acquisition date fair value

(b) The net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
measured in accordance with this NFRS.

As per Explanatory Note on Accounting for Business Combination dated 31 July 2022, Goodwill may be
measured in a business combination effected through exchange of equity interest of the acquirer by
considering the business valuation of acquiree computed based on the similar terms as for the purpose of
computing swap ratio which is agreed by the parties involved and approved by regulator and AGM of the
company and hence is reflective of fair value. The excess of consideration paid by the acquirer over the
business value of the acquiree is only considered as goodwill because it represents the expected synergies
and other benefits arising from combining the businesses.

The calculation of Goodwill as per explanatory note is given below:

a) Arambha Microfinance

Particulars Amount (NPR)
No. of shares 600,000
Additional shares from DDA date to Joint transaction date 44,280
Total share at the time of joint transaction 644,280
SWAP ratio 100%
No. of shares issued 644,280
Net worth per share of CHLBS as per DDA 129.28
Purchase consideration 83,292,518
Business Value acquired 69,724,859
Goodwill 13,567,660
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b) Deurali Microfinance

Particulars Amount (NPR)
No. of shares 240,000
Additional shares from DDA date to Joint transaction date -
Total share at the time of joint transaction 240,000
SWAP ratio 84%
No. of shares issued 201,600
Net worth per share of ACLBSL as per DDA 118.67
Purchase consideration 23,924,598
Business Value acquired 14,122,040
Goodwill 9,802,558

The Microfinance has recognized NPR. 13,567,660 and NPR. 9,802,558 as Goodwill of Arambha
Microfinance and Deurali Microfinance respectively and apportioned under other Reserve of equity. Since
the recoverable amount is higher than carrying amount of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) (value in use),
goodwill allocated is not impaired.

5.11 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

There are no further disclosures to be made as per NFRS requirements.

5.12 Events after reporting date.

There are no other events after Reporting Date affecting financial status as on Ashad end, 2079.

5.13 Valuation Hierarchy

Following tables demonstrates the valuation hierarchy of Microfinance’s Assets and Liabilities. This fair
value may differ from the actual amount that may be received or paid on settlement, realization or maturity
of those Financial Assets and Liabilities.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value
The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models
where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not
based on observable market data.

Fair Value

. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Disclosure

Particul As on | Ason As on | As on | Ason As on | As on | Ason As on
articuiars 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077 | 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077 | 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Quoted Equity

Shares

Unquoted - - - - - - | 1,000,000 | 1,000,000 | 1,000,000
equity

%3
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5.14 Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Microfinance has assessed whether there exists objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the
future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Obijective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or
issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data
relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in
an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence
of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather than
take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of
new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the
original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due.
Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

5.14.1 Use of Carve Outs for Financial Assets
a. For Impairment Calculation

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence
exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, to determine the amount of any impairment loss unless the entity is Microfinance or
financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073. Bank and Financial
Institutions shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as higher of amount derived as per
prudential norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank and amount determined as per paragraph 63.
However, bank and financial institutions shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to determine the amount of impairment loss on financial assets other than
loan and advances.

The Microfinance for the financial years 2078/79 has assessed the impairment under NFRS impairment
model and under NRB Directives. Since the impairments under NRB directives are more than under
NFRS, the Microfinance has recognised impairment calculated under NRB directives. Following table
below depicts the calculation of impairment allowance as per NFRS and as per NRB Directives:
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3I.d. 2Q00T/00R
IMPAIRMENT AS PER NAS 39
31 Ashad | 31* Ashad
5 nd

Particulars 32"¢ Ashad 2079 2078 2077

Loans and advances to Customers & BFIs

(excluding  staff loan, AIR and 5,025,912,414 | 4,385,506,209 | 2,583,735,880

impairment) (A)

Less:

Impairment allowances (a + b) 97,628,771 92,317,892 67,793,735

Collective Allowances (a) 14,341,437 13,159,505 25,101,580

Individual Allowances (b) 83,287,334 79,158,387 42,692,155

Impairment as percentage of Total 1.96% 2.13% 2.64%

Loans and advances

Particulars 32" Ashad 2079 31% Ashad 2078 31° Ashad 2077

Loan Loss Provision as per NRB

Impairment Loss as per NFRS-

alternative 2 84,543,355 53,367,173 12,380,944

Loss provision recognized in

financial statements (higher of 97,628,771 92,317,892 67,793,735

the two alternative)
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5.15 First Time Adoption of NFRS

The Financial Statements for the year ending 32" Ashadh 2079 are the first set of Financial
Statements prepared under NFRS by the Micro Finance which includes the Comparative
Financial Statements and Statement of Financial Position of transition date beside the complete
set of Financials Statements for the Fiscal Year 2078/79 under NFRS.

Significant changes form the accounting policies adopted under previous GAAP (i.e. Nepal
Rastra Bank Directives and Nepal Accounting Standard) and the adoption of NFRS has been
disclosed in the respective segments including the impact.

NFRS 1 “First-Time Adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards allows the first time

adopters certain exemption from the retrospective application of certain NFRS, when such
exemption has been adopted same has been disclosed in respective segment.

1%



3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

J1at aifficp ufddeor

SsaI|Igel] Xe ] 1ualnD

- 967'PTG'E8T'E  961'VTG'E8T'E Buimouiog
- €SV'0/7'829'T  €G¥'0L1'829'T sIawoisn)d wouy spsoda@
- - - JUsWINAISU| [elouRUIH 8AITBALIBQ Yueg
- - - elisey JedsN 01 eng
- - - SUOINIISU| [elduBUIH pue Yueg 01 ang
sy rewy RUIPIA dVvvD SUAN sapIIqery
(LST'OI8°C6)  9SE'SBL'ELE'S  6S6°9IFTIS'S SERNA AT )
mewmwuﬁ_uo% >ww%mﬂwowﬂmwm %@Wmh ocHMom_: tmwm (128'586'1) G8E'2T5'09 9G¢'861'GS S18SSY 1810
Swia)l 8AOqe UO sIesse Xe| palisyed  (2zy'6L1'8)  G98'OVG'ET 182'92.'1¢C s1essy Xe paliayed
uoISINOE Pue J3DJBWI LO IIIMPOOD (1 puy ce ) 6)5'080'T 00T'T70'9Z sjasse 0|qIBUBIU| PUE ||IMPO0S)

siseq [eniode U0 payooq UONBZIOoWY : :
SISeq NS uo paxooq uonedsidad  86T'ELY'S 89Y'1.6'02 0,2'86V'LT wawdinb3 pue Ausdold
- - - Auadoud Juswisanul
SNUOQ pue 1S8.8)UI U0 109)J8 Xe1  G6/'826'E 12L'veT'1e 2€6'G6T'LT $18SSV/ Xe Juaun)
- 000°000‘T 000°000°T 31111235 JUBLISaAU|
1502 PazIliowWe 1. Payooq soueApe pue sueo] (/£8'869'€9)  t¥9'€8Z'826'F  08Y'286'T66'Y S19WOISND 01 SAURAPY puUR SUROT
- - - SaAIIelado0)) 79 S|4IA 01 SSOURAPY pue ueoT]
- - - s19ssy Buipes] 1ayl0
- - - Sjuswiniisuj jeldueuld sAlleALIsQg
- 009'901'7¥7€ 009901 7i7€ suonnusul [eroueuld 7 Yueg ylm juswade|d
- 965'66.'9¢ 96566, '9¢ Yueg ensey [edaN woly ang pue ssouefeg Aioinels
- 8€%7'892'6 8€Y'892'6 1useAInba ysed pue ysed
SHIewdy NUR.RIIA dVVD SUAN $)Issy

6L0T ‘€ PeYSY uo sy

SUAN 03 JVVO snoiadad wo.ay uonisuea) 0} Inp uonisod [eoueul JO JUIUWIAIB)S JO UONRBI[IDUOINY

paTwI eysueg eAmIg eniqnyse| Lemney) eYquiesy

suopdopy SYAN 03 anp Judunsnlpy

RS



JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

J1at aiffics Ufddeor

hubjg
&\\39......,"51’.9@

Estd. 2072

¥

(LSTO18°C6)  9SE‘S8LELE'S  6S6IIVIIS'S Lymby pue sapiIqery [ejo],
(LT0°9SHI8)  0¥T‘998°6St 897°TTE IS Aynbjy [ejo,

paxo0q
Amus pannboe jo Aunbs jo sjusuodwod (S8£'G9S'TOT) L6¥'980'G6 788'TS9'96T Sanlasay

J8Y10 ‘anea] pue Alnjelb uo SSO| |ellen1oy
8se'60T'0z  (Go9'e9e’y) oo el sBuluse3 paurelay
- - - wniwsald aseys
- 60V'EVT'L9E  60V'EPT'L9E [ende) areys Ainb3
(6T7T°09€T1)  9II‘6I6CI6Y  T69460°0L6 SANIIqeIT [B)0 ],
- - - sanl|iqelT pareulpiogns
- - - panss| sanLINdas 1qaa

uolyenjen . . . . . ‘
eriemoe Jad se paxooq asea] pue Aumely (6¢C 09€TT)  L9TVEETOT  LGEVEL'VTT sen|IgelT 43410
- - - sani|iqel xel palisyad
- 9ve'sI8'eY 9ve'ST8'EY suoIsInOId
UdIPIA dVVD SWAN BET %
6L0T ‘T€ pPeYSY uo sy

SUAN 03 JVVD snoiAdad woay uonisue.y 0) d3np uonisod [BIOUBUL] JO JUIWI)IE)IS JO UOHBI[IDU0INY

paTwr eysues eAmIg eniqnyse| Lemney) eyquiesy

9}z



3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

J1at aifficp ufddeor

- 20z'eer'8LL'c  20T'EEr'8LL'e Buimoliog
- G90'GEL'TLC'T  G90'GEL'TLT'T s18WoIsNY wouy sisodaQ
- - - JUBWINIISU| [RIoUBUIH 9AITRALIBQ Muegq
- - - elisey edsN 01 anQg
- - - SuoIINIISU| [elduBUIH pue Yueg 01 anQ
SyTewy VUWIBPIA  dVVD SHAN sanIiqery
P8SPTETL LTO‘TTS'8SS 1TI°661°S€9Y $JISSY [€I0LL

PaX00( asea| JO S1asse Jo asn Jo 1ybul ‘ajel S . ‘) at
158191U1 8A103Y3 BuIsn Paxj0oq UBO| 1elS 98,8159 LSE LSV LT EVT 9.6 ¢C 19SSV JBY10
SWIa1l 9A0CR UO S)1asse Xe| paliajad  TOE'08Y'y 0/T'9€0', T/¥'9TG'TT S19SSY Xe | paniayaq
qsvq omsinboe pue GOLELIUO I1AD00D ELZTSEET oeres  wisasyl 555 iU U 11po0O
sIseq NS Uo paxooq uoneldaidag (s16'26€'T) 601'9£9'02 v6Y'sre'61 wawdinb3 pue Ausdoud
- - - Aladoud uswisenu]
- - - 19SSy Xe] Juain)D
- 000'000°'T 000'000°'T SBI1LINJAS JUBLISAAU]
b0 GETUELSY  regareery  95v'Sz6'THE' SI3WOISND O} S3OUEAPY PUE SUEO'T

pazilIowe 1 pay00q 9JUBApe pue SueoT

- - - SaAI1eIad00)) 79 S|4IA 01 SSOURAPY pue UeoT]
- - - s19ssy Buipel] 1syi0
- - - SJUBWINJISU| [eIdUBUIH 8AIRALIBG
- 0/6'9/2'G6T 0/6'9/2'G6T suonniisu| eroueUld & Yueg YlIM Juswade|d
o o yueg easey
i 9¢c10s0¢ce 9¢ros0¢ce [edaN wol) ang pue seaueeg Aloinels
- 1881129 1881129 1usfeAInba yseD pue ysed
SYIeWRY NURBHIA dVVD SUAN Sjossy

8L0T ‘1€ PBYSY U0 SY

SUAN 03 JVVD snoiadad woay uonisue.a) 0) anp uonisod [BIDUBUL] JO JUIWI)IE)S JO UOHBI[IDUOINY

paIwI eyjsues eAMIg eniqnyse| Leney) eyquery

REQN



JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

S

&

¥

S8SYTEIL LTOTTS'8SSY  1TI'661°SE9‘Y Aymby pue sapiiqery [ejox,
SEILOST9 9bE°L66°0EY I8+ F0S T6¥ Kymby [ejoL,

paxooq
Amus painboe jo Aunbs jo syusuodwod  699'07L'TL 6T8'66T'9L 88Y'0V6'LYT SEUVEREN

JaY10 ‘anes| pue A1Injeib Uo SSO [erien]oy
121'986'6Y 8TT'¥18'L G78'008'2S sBuluse3 paurelay
- - - wniwsalid areys
Teak 1xau u pajsnlpe saseys snuog  (192'022'09)  60Y'€86'9VE 871'€9.'982 [ende) areys Aunb3
0SH'LI86 I89°CTSLTI'Y  OV9'P69THI‘Y sapIIqery [ejo L
- - - sanfiqel] pareulpiogns
- - - panss| saNndas 1qad

uolnrenjea C S o
eLenoe 1od se pasooq asea pue Anjels 057 186 9%8'0ST'T9 962'896'0. san|Igel JByo
- - - san|IgeIT Xel paliaed
- 60G'€5E'S 60G'€GE'S suoisinoid
- 895'702'9T 895'702'9T sanl|igel Xe] Juaun)d
SyIRWAY U dvvdD SHAN e
8L0T ‘1€ PeYSy uo sy

SUAN 03 JVVD snoiadad woay uonisue.a) 0) Inp uonisod [BIDUBUL] JO JUIWIIE)S JO UOHBI[IDUOINY

paIwI eyjsues eAMIg eniqnyse| Leney) eyquery

930



3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

J1at aifficp ufddeor

sal

el Xel uaun)d

- 096'€LV'Vey'T  096'€LY'vev'T Buimoliog
- 7€G'72.'G88 7€G'72.'G88 s1awoisng wouy susodaQ
- - - JUSWINAISU| [e1dURUIH BAITRALIBQ Mued
- - - rlisey [edaN 018nQ
- - - SuoIINIISU| [elouRUIS pue Yyueg 01 ang
syIewY NUIRPIA  dVVD SYAN sapI[Iqery
917°999°9L  061‘V89°TLI'T  90¥ 0SE6HL T $1ISSY [BI0,
pax00q asea| JO S1asse Jo asn Jo 1ybi R o o
‘ale 150191U1 SAN0BLG Buisn pasjooq ueo| yeig 897 LPT'9 0S0'S8T'OT 815'7e€'2e 81888V J8U10
SWSM BAOCE UO SJosse Xe] paliayed  €82'/08'y  8¥S'8T9'T 0£8'G21'9 SESNVACTEIEIE] g
uoRISINDOL pue J8DIBWI UO IMPOOD o0 ) 4pz6 122'289'YT s1asse 9|qIBUBIU| PUE ||IMPO0S)
SISeq |enJode U0  Pay00g  uoneziIowy : :
siseq |NTIS U0 paxooq uonerdaidad  T8T'TOE 678'689'GT 000'T66'ST awdinb3 pue Auadold
- - - Auadold juawisanul
- L1¥'99€ L1¥7'99€ $18SSV/ Xe Juain)d
- 000'000'TC 000'000'T2Z $8111IN08S JUBWISAAU|
1S00 PaZILIOWE Je PaX00( S0UBAPE puB SUBOT  82G'C0L'TS  9VT'Cv6'STS'C ¥ 9'W9',9S'C $18W0ISND 0] S30UBAPY PUE SURO™]
- - - m@ZEEQQOU % S|HIA 01 S80URAPY pue ueoT
- - - S19SSY mc__um\_._. 18Y10
- - - SluswnJISu| Jeldueuld sAlleRALIRQd
- 802'T/E'96 802'T/E'96 SUOINIISU| [BIOUBUIS 79 SuBg YIM JUsWsde|d
. . Mueg eJisey
i 000°0s 00005 [edaN wol) ang pue seaueeg Aloinels
- eLY'9eG'y €LY'9eG"y JuajeAINba ysed pue ysed
SRy UWRIIA dvvdD SHAN $19ssY
LLOT ‘1€ PeYSY uo sy

SUAN 03 JVVD snoiadad woay uonisue.a) 0) anp uonisod [BIDUBUL] JO JUIWI)IE)S JO UOHBI[IDU0INY

paIwI eyjsues eAIg eniqnyse| Leney) eyquery

1



(o4
9
o
S~
9
9
o)
o
I
&

)

&\\39!‘.".‘35;’3,9/

¥

917°999°9L  061‘V89°TLIT 90V 0SE6PL'T Aymby pue sapifiqery [ejoL
080'v79'99  T98‘TI8‘EEE I¥6°9€V00% Aymby ejo L

paxooq
Anus paunboe jo Aunbs jo susuodwod 8//'€/8'89  6SY'T66'9F L€2'G98'STT SEUVEREN

J8Yl0 ‘anes| pue Aunjelb uo SSO| [elen)oy
6YY'G90'TC  ¥52'8S €0L'€2T'Te sBuluse3 paurelay
- - - wniwsalid aseys
Teak 1xau u pajsnfpe areys snuog  (8yT'STE'€Z) 8YT'€9.'98¢ 000'8¥7'€92 [ende) areys Aunb3
9ETTHO'0T  6TEILSBEET  SIVE16°S8PET SapIIqer [e)0],
- - - sanjiqel] pareulpiogns
- - - panss| sanLNJas 1qad

uoljenjea . . . . . .
leLemoe Jad se payooq aseaq pue Aumeis 9EVCYOOT  GE8TLO'BT 216'VTL'8E san|Igel Yo
- - - san[Iqel] Xel paiigyeq
- - - SUOISINOId
SRy UWRIIA dvvdD SHAN e
LLOT ‘1€ PeYSY uo sy

SUAN 03 JVVD snoiadad woay uonisue.a) 0) Inp uonisod [BIDUBUL] JO JUIWIIE)S JO UOHBI[IDU0INY

paIwI eyjsues eAIg eniqnyse| Leney) eyquery

13



3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

J1at aifficp ufddeor

EEV'I6LOT  6SPTET'EY  T68°€T0°09 JW0dU] XB ], JW0dU] 3.10J3q JJo1q
- 192'822'6€  192'822'6€ asuadx3 Bunelsado-uoN
- 0€%'99. 0€%'99/ awoou| Bunessdo-uoN
EEP'I6LOT  6SPIET'EY  6TL'S8¥'86 oud unerddQ
e A e eg TISSIZZ  96S090°L  L0S'90E'S uopezILIOWY % UopeIoaidsq
SMAN pUE /T SYN Jod se paseat] Bune a%mw LET'V6T TS6'STY'T8  680'0T9'T8 sasuadx3 Bunelado J8y10
uolienjeA Jerienioe Jad se paxy0oq asea
pue Ainyels ‘Jjoid pasealoul uo snuog ‘ered  (292°9€L'c)  282'S6T'2€C  020'651'822 sasuadx3 [auuosiad
150491Ul 3ANDaY e Buisn payooq ueo| Jels
(€1T96T°T)  6T8ILI0TE  SISLEGIE ssuadxy SuneaadQ
0TT'S6V'ST  88TH06°€9E  SHETISLIY dwoduy JunerddQ PN
. . S9SS0|
0 (r92'5€2) (r92'5€2) Jay10 pue sueoj Joy (jesianal)/abaeyd Juawiredwy
0TTS6V'ST  T9€°0€9°T0F  I8S'STI‘LI¥ dwodu] Suneadd( [eyoL,
- - - awoou| Bunelado 18Y10
- - - oWwoau| mc_Umh._. 19N swodu|
0TT'S6H'ST  19€°0€9°T0F  I8S‘STI'LI¥ UOISSIWWO)) PUE 39, ‘)SAINU] JON
- T8IESHOS  TBI‘ESH 9S dWOdU] UOISSIWILIO)) PUE I JON
- ¥97'872'6 ¥9T'8T2'6 asuadx3 uoIssIWWoY pue 834
- 9ve'TL9'G9  9VE'TL9'G9 aWOodU| UoISSILIWOD pue 334
0TT'S6H'ST  G6LILLI'SKE  66€°TLI09E W0dU] 3S313U] N
- 09%'€/6'66E€  09V'€.6'66E asuadx3 1sau81u|
ueoj JJels uo 1salaqu| . . . . . .
pue siseq |enJode Uuo Pax)00q awodul 1saiaiu| 0¢CS6v 9T 6E909T S, 8G8GY9 09. 3Wwodu] 1saJsiu|
D ELUEN | U FAAD) SUAN sae[nanIeq

6L0T PBYSY PUTE PIPUD 18K ) 10,

SUAN 03 JVVD SnoiAdad wioay uonisue.rj 0) INp ssO| Pue JJoid JO JUIWIIEB)S JO UONRBI[IIU0INY

P eyjsues eAIg eniqnyse| Leney) eyquery

1R



JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

€09 ¥9'6 aleys Jad sbuiures painjig
€0'9 ¥5'6 areys Jad sburuies oiseg
aleys Jad mM——_:.:wm—
8€9°798°TI  6LP'SHI‘TT  LII‘800°SE 1834 3Y) J10j Jyoa g
8€9'798'2T  6.¥'S¥T'¢¢  LTT'800'GE uonnsuj [eroueuld 8yl Jo sispjoy Alnb3

10} 8]qeINqLIE Jj0Id
8€9°798°TI  6LP'SHI‘TT  LII‘800°SE 1834 3Y) J10j Jyoa g

swiay 8Aoqe uo xe) pausged  (€50'90€)  (SET'6L6°L)  (881'G82'S) Xe] paliajed

snuoq aakojdwa o o o xe . Jualin

pue 3WOodUl 1SaJa)ul 3Sealoul Uo 103))d Xe] 56.8c6¢€ S11°9906¢ 016766 ce 1 o)
.W S6L8T6'E  186980°IT  9LLSIO0‘ST asuadxy xeJ,
SYIRWY U dVVvD SYAN sae[nanIeq

6L0T PeYSY pUzg pIpud 1edk ) 104
SUAN 03 JVVD SnoiAdad wioay uonisue.rj 0) INp ssO| Pue JJoid JO JUIWIIEB)S JO UONRBI[IIU0INY

P eyjsues eAIg eniqnyse| Leney) eyquery

S

&

¥

¥



3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

J1at aifficp ufddeor

Ly THTe) 148°20Z°0% 1 £65°096°9€1 AWO0dU] XBJ, JWOdU] 3.10Jd( JJoIg
- 60S'€SE'S 60S'€SE'S asuadx3 Bunelado UON
- - - awoau| Bunesado uoN
(LPTThTe) 182070V COTPIETHT 1goaq SunerddQ
19SSV J0 asn Jo 1ybry uo uoneidaidsQ o - o
DUE SISeq WIS UO payooq uoneoaldag L6%'9GT'C 621'82L'Y 129'788'9 uoneziJowy 7% uonerdsidag
9T SH-N pue /T SWN Jad se pasesT Bunessdo  90£'8ST GTE'CTS'EY T29'T.9'eY sasusdx3 Bunetsdo 4810
uolenjeA errenioe Jad se paxooq
asea pue Aunjeso ‘yoid pasessoul uo snuoq  (8Sy'/ZE'T) €62'20v'LLT GE8'V/0'9.T sasusdx3 [suuosiad
‘a1eJ 152J31Ul 9A1193Y)3 Bulsn pax0ooq uro| Jels
SPE‘L86 8ELEH9°STT €80°1€9°97T asuadxy SunerddQ
(206vSTD 8LS‘9¥8°S9€ S8I°SH6°89¢€ swodu] sunesadQ 19N
o o $9SS0| J3Y10
0 185°9¢€ 5¢ 1859e€ 5¢ pue sueo| 1oy} (Jesianal)/abaeyd uawiredwi
(206'vSTD 699°9€5°96€ 99L°18T'V6€ dwodu] SunerddQ [B10],
- - - awoou| Bunelado 18Y10
- - - awoau| Buipes] 19N awoau|
(T06'vST0) 699°9€5°96€  99L‘I8T'V6E UOISSIWIWIO)) PUE 3, )ISIINUT JON
- SYT'879°06 SPT'879°06 dUIOIUT UOISSIWWIO)) PUE 33, JIN
- 762'79¢'y 762'79€'y asuadx3 uoIssIWWOYD pue 834
- 6£G'266'76 6£G'266'76 aWOoJU| UOISSILIWOYD pue 894
(206'vSTD) €Th'806°S0E 1TS°€S9°€0€ aW0dU] JSA1NUJ JON
- G08'662'66T G08'662'66T asuadxg 15a4a1U]
UED) 4JE1S L0 15aJe1] (zo6'vS2'2) 822'802'S0S 9Z£'€G6'20G awoou| 1saau|
pue siseq [enlode UO Pax00(g awodul 1Saiau|
D RTITEN| UAIPIA dVVvO SWAN saenonIed

8L0T PBYSY ISTE PIPUd 18d4 ) J0]
SUAN 03 JVVD SnoiAdad woay uonIsue.) 0) NP ssOJ Pue JJoad JO JUIWIIB)S JO UONRBI[IIU0INY

pa)IwI eysueg eAmIg eniqnyse | Lemney) eYquiesy

134



JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

€8°1¢C ¥9'2E aleys Jad sbBuiures painjig

€812 ¥9'2E areys Jad sburuies o1seg

daeys J3d sGuruaey

WLyTTHTe) 09685596 TILOTIEE6 1ed4 ay) J0j Jgoiq

(Lvz'zve'e) 096'855'96 ZTL'9TE'E6 uonNIIsU| [e1ouBUL4 8} 40 siapjoy Aunb3
10} 9|GEINQLINE 11J0Id

(Lvz'zve'e) 096'855'96 ZTL'9TE'E6 Ieak ayy a0y Jyoud
SWwia)l 9A0qe UO Xe) paiisydd #1829 orT'68T'S - (92€'929'1) Xe| pausjeq
- T20'€E8'sy T20'€E8'8Y Xe] Jualng

- 188'€Y9'ey I88°€H9°ch asuadxy xe |,

Sy Tewdy UIPIA dvvD SUAN sre[nanIed

8L0T PBYSY ISTE PIPUd 18d4 ) J0]
SUAN 03 JVVD Sno1Adad woay uonIsue.Iy 0) dnp sso| Pue 31jo.id JO JUIUWIIEB)S JO UONRBI[IDU0INY

pa)IwI eysueg eAmIg eniqnyse | Lemney) eYquiesy

@

0{\\‘3@ ubii

13%



3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

J1at aifficp ufddeor

985°€8L°09 (T0¥'s¥s‘p) (ssop) 10 yyoad d[qeInqrysiq
(-/+) 18U10 1
(Tor'€80'T) (£61'061'%) (+) 1es1ana4/(-) paziuBbiodal ssoj [elrenoy 'y
(+) restanaa/(-) paziubodaa ureb aseyaund urebieg 6
(+) 111Mp0o09 Jo Juswredwt /(-) paziubiodal |[IMPOOS) )
(1¥9'060'S) (518'602'0T) (+) restanaa /(-) paziuboaal sjesse xe] pallaleq ‘@
(+) restanal/(-) s1essy Bunpjueg UoN UO UOISIA0Id SSO| UBO| 10YS P
(+) res4anal/(-) uaWwISaAUI Uo $ass0] a]qissod 10} uolsinoid 110ys 9
(+) res1anal/(-) s;unod9e ul uoisinoad ssoj ueoj 14oys 'q
(68£'596'2) (269'196't'T) (+) pan1a2al 1s8481ul panJade snolnaid/(-) ajqeAlsdal 1saaaiu] e
Tjusunsnipe Aloje|nbey
810°€76°69 606°911°ST judunsnipe A£10)e[N3a.1 3.10J3q (SSO]) 10 o1
1Yo b
L6%°289'T 780°0S€ pun uoNB10Id JUBID )
2Tr'68T'C puny Bulure.) ,seakojdwg ‘8
065'G96 T80'0SE puny Aipgisuodsal [e190s sjelodio) p
anJasal uondwsapas reuded 2
punj uoirenion) abueyodxs ublaio- 'q
809'S¥.°0¢ €29'T00°L 9AJ3S3l [BI3UD) "B
‘suonendoiddy
2T2'91e'e6 LTT'800'GE sso[ 10 yyo.d yo yudurdye)s aad se (ssof) 10 yyoad PN
8L0T PUd peysy 6L0T PUS peysy sremanaed

(4dN urunowy)
6L07 PRYSY PUZE PIPUD IBIL YY) J0]
$sof 10 jyo.ad d[qeInqLySIp JO JUIWI)EIS

pajTwr eysues eAmIg eniqnyse| Lemey) eYquiety

939



JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

I FEET
AR, FISATSY
BT A ¥¥REI
T A YYIINY

Web site: www.nrb.org.np
Email: nrbmfpsd@nrb.org.np

N T3 A.: 03

71 wem: a.fa.a.q fa. /iR-wrema a0 /50 [ L8 &

ot Ry St wgfaa feir e fafres,
FAYT-90, FATAEANS |

faq: snfifes ad 095 /R @ iffe Rl Rrexoes geme T wEwm |

fafa: 3092 /93708

T,

TG G T WE AMdF a9 3095 /9% FT AGIHET WUH ITEAT, ATRT A feama,
T gt ST, JaudaEel IRiNE qqr aftm aareden gfaagd T 8 IW
ageEF gfatea, ayed ufee ko e fefm Rragogedn araew R-wea
qwﬁimmzf@miﬁmamwmmmh/ fraraelt qar o= gafd FTAT
g FHAH YA T T 2@ FEAHET g SRR F AEE ai afie
ofdeTal G AT SERTE Q9T FAEE T T afE aERe g gaeEa ain aifde
T 3005 /%R F1 Fadra faerer g T wEwiy GR ARCE FERT PER aRY T |

(F) AU AL AFAR TAACING g T qufae fada qeamears awr e
wFEa fdem, 095 @1 fA¥eE 7. S/09s AR A 9¥ T IUEA A (F) ()
mmmmhamhﬁumamxmwn@ﬁm
QT THEA |

(@) T FFATe FATATIIG “U" FF AGAA faiy FEAEEArs A MRCH T
e, 309s @ FA3wA 4. 9%/08s F & A, § FWIGH TACATAI AGfAA
Pty SredTEed AT WEHETE G T A1 Wed qwEta qd YeRa e
e TIHT AT WIS ATEdT fRargq & |

(M TF FFF fEe gEIiTH A G qEH T AT AP FHATH qOd W 3
yfaerae g4 THH FHAR aIfaaal @ THEA |

() TH FFATE IAGATANE g FhH qufan fadi qeaeEars S ke v
fage, 3095 1 S 7. 99 T FaT 7.} T IU-FT ] T 3.3 FHIAH FA FAR
T qeETd A (ERe F GEAT ST (AR T 7 qEaE qAnatE THE |

(@) T9 TFATe TACAAIS ‘H” FE fadiy ARAEEArE A quE @ e
06s, F [AIIH 7. 3/095 F A A, 3 (1) THITH FHEH AT9Z TOF HEIATS
q%ﬂhmwwimmmw}ﬁwmmmwmw
TR A T |

la)mmmmhﬁummmmmmmm
TETH T & |

(@) T ATARE T A dEEE a9 99 fear @ friew 7 iRee
e gfTaETe AATCE HRades T TR T QIR T &7 |

e
arerd
1=rmm:«;amaa:aarhmmhmfwmn ( )
L FTEAA FHE, dgfad TR qEaasr B I-Frders
-
R T

93z



J1at aiffed ufddcol 31.d. Q0OT/00Q

anffes a¥ 20ET/©R B A [IERUIES IAHRIAD! SHTA oMUIcT T JBATT RSP GISRTaT
3UR FIATH! YeITR BN TANTH IRD! SABRT AE 3G ey |

(%)

@)
T

-
Gl o) Sl

£

g

AT AT IALETIIC 1Y ST FrT-2uT THEITIER &7 shiveTe W Hfasrd o faxfier arerar araf-er srisaur T
& TR e TR SRR Y © |

TTEHEEATE TG T BT ITAEIT HTT(-2d Hel FehTehT TeRuT HTdsTieh 0T SRR TS SRR ST & |

T AT | T AT T FHART e WThT 3 Ffarder g1 ThH HHTRT qTCTHHT @ T STaRT 3T & |

ST T hegHT Shofl ool ST THAN G fei 1 SRR SHERT ST e |

HYEHT 3THE, TeEIeeaTs HYg shofl T T ol He 5 Teh sholl WIS YATE T Frei-eT FEITgaR =g TR STRRT
ST |

e srgam JuTet fomf wfaaemTT (NERS) 1 arfie gfaae e mie e o1qie & |

T STTER ST T ST SETIeTeh T JuTeT T okl TITHTA qT TEITd FRevTene SficaTsushT hithades STt
FeraT TEEITR TR T T ST HEHETHT AT SRR ST S |

REN



J1at aiffics Ufddeor

JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

3RS AR YIS [ AT AHSSDI YSCEUIIAT

UIAIdq JLMerel/ AU dicl diget faaur
qrferheh! eaedn gEaTiea GuieA HIE T ST
TR T T SFehenT wtegpfa farg fasror U GE VT W T 97 T
(Remittance) Trrell FHEieE T | qTHTT

9% 0



J1at aifficp ufddeor

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

MR AR YA (T AT fAfies

DG BIATAYT TAT YA BIRATAII BT BIAANED

L R )

G AN £ =4 W R A

%0
R
2R
2R
2%
K]
2%
R
2
2R
o
R?
R
R3
¥
R
R
RY
Re
R

£
3R
33
¥
ERY
3%
e
3¢

off Tz arerer

#ff =AY FAR I
off TRt =T

ot Tt @i

ot fauertrst e

ot ST AT
CIRESRRIECICE

ot 21 yaTe SR
ot gaw I

ot firar T=3a

2t T B

ot af<w @t
ot g SR

off e U

ot TR HESi
ot Fmer woTe fafaesar
ot A JHTE T
ot wiferwer gehrer
off fora e

oft iR faamt

ot T et

oft wferrsT . 4.
ofT T TRIETRT
off farar sTeTgL TRt
o 92 SETgt &Y
#ff I qTETT

ot FTee S Ol
ot feorerret AR A"
oft srfaTeT TS
off gope

off fauar I

o gfew gt

oft shfe= Tt TR
oft g STfueRT
off feur eraferam

#ft o amar

ot afaq TR

oft et Srfeshrt

HERH ()

e

TSI @, FHIEf IS

O WqE, T SesT

ol Tt

FRiE stfurepd, it saEr
TSR YW, RO Ta9T

TS YW, TTUSHhT UaT

O YW, WO HewT
HEIHT HATerehd, HIef TS
STt favmr

Fris sifshd, et gewr
FIIsA fuehd, it e
SHITTch SASEITI T
FIIsA fuehd, it e
I furehd, qfreHT TesT
TSI YW, IRHAT JQIT
SR ST feor favmr
SR SAeeTd favmT
FHIISH fureRd, T e
SRR ST feur fervmr
ToreTer SHrETa T
HIISA fereRd, UTTel TaT
HIISA TfurRd, HUTTell TaIT
HIISA TR, TS FeIT
IS Tfuehd, e HawT
IS fershd, IFHT TaIT
IS furshd, IFHT TaIT
SN TR dieeoT faamr
T et famr

ST famr

g et famr

IS furehd, It weST
ToreTer SHereeTa farvmT
et weaT e
[ERREDETICERE U
jiciice)

g famr

FRE vt

A

et

1¥9



RIS A FYAT AT J2en Afs

JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

AT BAIIEH I A YeGEIBERD! a0

STRAT AT TR, TR
TRET AT HS2R, THT
TR ST fathe, @iere
TRET FATE =YY, TEgH
RATET FHTEATAT WIS, IS

< WWW,W

] TG FRTAT Bleae i, BT

20 TG AT STS[TERT, ST
22 JIRGT T SETET, BT

23 T FHEATAT M=ok, AT
23 3G FETEE ateE, gaed

2% T AT FATITEST, SBTIT
oW TG FETE YR, G

9% STRET HETE TSIAY, ST

2o STRAT AT AT, URE

%¢ YT HETE TETET, G

2’ e FETET JRTE, 3P

3. AYE Y- @1 FHT@H GEAT: 95 (3TN)
? ST AT THSTH e, ST

G N £ X W W

R AT HRAT AT, TR

3 T FETAT Faa T, Jdae
¥ ITRAT AT HTERET, ddee
Y G FRIAT T, Faerar

© TG HRTAT AR, el
o TRT e fafer, egeT
< STET AT HFET, TR
] T HET e, Fer
2o NI HET WYY, Ferer
¢ ST HETAE TeUy, Hetar
8 IIRET HETC SFHT, Feller
23 STRAT HEATE SHHA, Heat
9% ST AT TSTHET, Feery

¥R

mm
IS R
=T T

gz I

FAR T

T areTet

% SRIGL TS
ST 9
& RIgL Tt
FHWT JETE GhTeT
Hi gea

T &S

ST AT JhT
TSI FHR ey
T TEH

HeT HAT Hed &

EER IR )
Grfiqr shreht

TheT TETE et
Fereprer iy

AT U eRT
| farvaerat
Il fersTreft
g FHR AT
TZ Hae

T fehg T
I 7 Sl
i =HR

T Rt
i~ HHRT d%

FTR2T .9T.-%, TR
HIRTET 9T - %, 4Rt
Fafigmror 9.41. -, @
fahet AT T.91.-2, WETE
AT .97 -3, TBgH
FISTYL 7.9, -to, {ISYT

ot @A, GRS

ot TR T.97.-%, AF
gfcgary T, -, BT
ST .97, ~<, ST
AFeTR .91, -, AT

qafed T.91.- ¢, 3

ST H.9T.-%, GAadr

U TR, WTT

a9 AT -2, AT

IATS T.UT.-¢, TAH

gferrm 7.41.- 3, ARE
SRTRTEr .91, - 3, Gl
[ERULIE R IFCRIC -0je 8

fostre .41 - <, Uee
Hlced] 1.97.-%, ST

SR TR 7,97, - ¢ {aee
FERET .97, - g
AR A.491...- 22, ferrar
SSaHTal .97, .- 3, Te
Trfore .91.-3, g

S 791~ ¥, WRrd
STTTET 7,97, - HerHT
$9aTqT 7.1, - 3, TeATer
SEYET T.1T.-22, HeAtar
ST .97.-2R, FATRT
TIAMA -4, el
ToTTear-y, qelt



2R
2%
20

(<4

?

N0 X W

G

¢

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

SIEmRfs -%, TaxrEr
ET-, fawrer
FINTITH- O, TJNT
Aeifar-<, g

TSI 79T -9, Targeft

ST HT=ERTE .97 -2, fareaTesrs
SHUT- 9T 20, HTHTATSIH
FHUATHTS .97, -%, Tameeft

fagt 7.u1.-%, gaTRIe

ToR TT.9T. -, 4Ties

‘rlrﬂgllc"l .91.-R, ShTHUAToh
RTIgeR .97~ SeEr

et .97, - THS™

HereT 7.91.-2R, Targarees
gefteft .91 -4, faryeft

AT 79T -3, JATRIE

TTfe 7.491.%, Terdes

et 7.91.-2, Tereer

TET 71.9T. -, FehaYL
ST 9T, - %, HHaIT

FTieTshT .9T.-¢, TadaT

FHTYRT TR 7.97.- %, HISHUST

. TUGHT T I FAT G&T: 9% (FTe)

ML X W o

G

STRET AT dqaTaer, ferreT S SERAES
ST T LT, Terer gTeRm a3t
STRET AT feRaTg, egeT Troyer fafe
STRAT AT e, e Hega iRt
3. AT T3 @l FET HEAT: 95 (38TY)
ITRAT AT Gehie, faryeft TRt FeTTeht
T HEAT Gohe, FaredTesis T gereisht
ST AT ST, FHTHIAT T TR
TR At farygeft Hffar o
ITRET FHATT FER, JaAThRIE gferdT getrer
AT AT T, anfes JHST oTT
W*quﬂq lﬁr&qm, CAENIECIED SSIGIREREIR
JRET AT AL, AT THHYT IS
SIET ST Ao, THsTT et HAT a
STRET FHTteR geivet, fameeft AT TR
ITRAT FHEATT TR, JaThIE gfey 3=
ITET HRTAT FHeAToTg, e SFferar Tt
T St faee, feder wfaem de
ITRET AT FLeA, HhaTR AT SR
ITRAT AT IRRIER, feda ek TETGT AT
T HETAT ST, HISATUST ferT dieer
ITRAT FEATAT BT, FTAG Hooledl S
ITET FEET Tfd, TaA TRt fer. .
ST HETAT AR, TGS 3| Taw
ST e, w=resT AT U
ST AT 23T, T U9 R G
TG HRTT TS, TG T gt
ST T 4T, Hehl st o=t
STRET AT ST, hTEh! EUERIEY
ITET HRAT TS AT, STl ST St 3Tt
T FHRAAT ST, TG =T Tt
T FETAT S3AEE, T FHA TS 1T
ITET HRTT ZEE, TTg Fiea= FIHT

SHTETETT .97, 26, TIAYL
femeft faoft T, 2, TeeroRrT
MRS T.9T. 20, TSI
FIATUSHT TT.9T. o, TATEFST
TG 7.97.-23, TEr
IFETE AT -, TG

FAT AT, -, hTEhT
TSR 79T, .- 3, FHTEhT
YA IS .97, 2o, TATESIT
S .91, 20, TE
JEATTUEET .91, o<, Tg
TIFIE .. oc, AT

U, M. oc, T

AT 79T, 0%, TG

%3



ITRET ST R, SeET
ITRGT HRAT T, TTedT
T HEATAT HHIHET, T<ET
AT FETET JEE, Hierag
ST AT S, qredT
ITRET AT GleiT, Tedr

< ITRAT FEATT Toehle, STETET=T
Q T T T, e

%0 ITET FRied faaerer, Tert
22 ITRET FET ATerd e, a8
] AT FET JATRl, RS
03 Gl wETEE gfefude, sae
0¥ T HET T, BT
9% ST HETAT HIUET, HiTATE]
% SIET HEE B TR

20 ITRET e TeTarT, ity
9¢ TGN T S, T9-<el

9 STRAT FETER TEdT, a8

o IITET HEAT A, Teur

32 T FHRATAT TRGAT, FSH
R G FETET AR, FEH
I ITET FATAT SR, &
¥ TG AT AEEI, Jedr
e AT T =S, et
& TG HETAT HET, TeHT

e TG HRTAT TH, JTedr

e TG FETAT TAATS, FHiTeras]
R TG FETAT EE, T
30 Gl HETE i, T
32 ST ST BAE, TaeTaEt
3R e FEfEd e, EfarEr
33 AT FETE TS, 378

¥ ST AT &Y, &S

3% T HETA B, 3T

3% 9ITET HATAT FHHhIS, ¥FH g4
30 AT HETET HIEER, 3
3¢ T FRTAT AT, TI<ET
3% T ST ThE, Hiveag

G o £ X w

9%

Y. AR 39T AT AT GET: Y5 (HES)

Hos] Tt

Tt SRR
7o fa. 5t
I TS
Joret ST
e 78
T BT
e qrEier
INERE IR
[ERUE
el AT g
= HETE I
STHT SRR
T UIesh

Fieum dee

AT T
Igar ded
it st fesrer
ToHT TTEReT
e fae
T SRR
% TRIG HUSHY
AT TRTgE Tt
T

T BT
gfgwmar e
et st

T FHATRT afEmR
e afER

TTRT T Tt
oTfeTsh Ut g

T B

ferar soeRy

S JETThT
SIRT SHIAT
ST kTR qTEt
ST qTet

JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

AT .97, -¢, Tu=Er
famT3 TT.AT.-R, Tedr
FE MAT-Y, TR
JET A.97.-¥%, Hieasg
fsdieple Tt -, qredT
giver gfa m.ar.-x, Jear
HIATHT .97, -3, STERareT
R AT -R, TE T
HET 3AAT -, &S
HTiTehT 9T -<, ToHT

Tt AR, 318

et ar.-«, 9|
SArefaan rar.-2, &uEr
qTEE T.UT.-22, TRl
SR .97 - &, ety
Fee LT~ %, §9<El
TRTERTST 9.9 -2, hiderasg
TS AT, -€, S
TedT LT, -%, aT8

TS .91, -2, qredT
G T, -, FSH
gl .9, - ), el
MR LT -3, 318
Uedr .97, -9, UedT

e AT, -R, YT
TERIE-¢, TeHT

UYL .97, -%, Tredr

O AT, - R, FHideTawg
YA T, -2R, TAATET
qfeerT atepfas 7.1, <, To=Er
HEAT AT, -2, FAAuEHt
grofit T, -3, SEharE
gL T, -4, qTS

JES AT, -¥, 3T
TSRO AT, ¥, IS
faer T, -, wEAE
STTATSAT M.~ 3, AT
FITEHATE T, -, FI<ET
HERET AT, -R, FHiteteg



¥o Gl HEGT STST, =@t

%9 T FRid Raest, sEtEtt
¥ YRET ST Jedd, Tl

¥3 YT SR ST, TedT

¥¥ G St e, Jedr

¥W 3T ST I, s

¥% ST SR TR, St
¥ RAT HET e, it

¥e e FEed WEY, dt

¥ T HEE S, it

wo I HrATeRT TS, afdar

4e TG AT S, qTedT

4R AT FHATT SHhIE, T[T

43 STRET FHETAT GREATE T, Sl

Wy YT R e 33U, STetEtE
& T e g St

WE TG FHRTT SATHYR, T
Qo ST FHEE AT e, FaaEr

“e WWWW,W

%. FUTAT FI— TGN FAT FGET: R (T7F)
2 AT FETET AR, S

T HRTAT AAR, T
TRAT FHTATTT SRR, T ufeem
TTET HETAT GAT, TSRS
ST FRATTT ST, gEd

AT FAT HeHT, e
ST FHrAfer ST, ged

< T T éﬁ,g‘@ﬁ

] ST AT SR EH, gad

%0 TG HEATE AT, gET

22 TG FEE HETHET, Hieliehie
)R T FETEH go, s

. JIT A G- TET FH FEAT: 9 (TF)
g T St foTEes aeR, 3Tsm

G N £ X W o

R

GiTar omT 91

;)

STeAT =Ty

T A

A9 .4,

T for. 3.

qf STeTgt Aok
S TG TEH
T ISR
T 3.4,
STHT TS G
eI
ghgarsT aea
e Tt et
ferwmr st

feera afst

3I1.d. 2Q0T/00Q

faaqumm 9T, -, STEE=
fFeRTE T.9T. -%, STEtErEr
faetamT .91, -3, &u=<er
TEET .91, -, qredT
&SI AT, ~¢, TedT
Tt GART 9. -R, Stk
TRl 9T, -, SfeaT
AT T -%, dich

SIehT T, -R, Sieh
FIEA-< dfeh

STHTSTET 7.4, -, Ffdar
et F_U-%, et
FHIE-R, ToHT

ST -, ik

v -% STETE T
HYe-¢ aifdar

TTeR e -3 TIATTHT
foretmmr-u, sa=er
G- 3 FUSET

AMET .97, 2, G I

AR T.9T1. R, "I
IRSEAT .91 ¢, &h U=
T F.97.-%, ST

fawar mT.-<, g@a
TiRIE T.9T.-¢, gEd
Tl AT -%, ged
fTm .- 22, ged
feRg .-, gea
feargme 7.91.-3, g&a

gf=r femft T -, Feftnie
go] T.9T.-Y, o

ool ToTIeh .97, 2, To™




JM.d. 2Q0T/00Q

1¥%



J1dl aiffics gfadeor 311.d. Q0OT/00R

Province
58
19 18 18
14 12
2 40
1
fy 2072.073 fy 2073.074 fy 2074.075 fy 2075.076 fy 2076.077 fy 2077.078 fy2078.079  Falgun Koshi Province ~ Madhesh ~ Bagmati Province  Gandaki Lumbini  Karnali Province Sudurpaschim
Province Province Province rovince
—No of staff —No of Branch

In “Million”

5,025
98,902

83,895

62,326

57,077

2072073 fy2073.074  fy2074.075  fy2075.076  fy2076.077 fy2077.078  fy 2078.079 41103 069

fy 2072.073  fy2073.074  fy 2074.075  fy 2075.076  fy 2076.077  fy 2077.078  fy 2078.079

HJoan O/S B Deposits
= Member = Borrower

In “Million”
367 Loan
346

15.26%

84.74%

1y 2072.073  fy 2073.074  fy2074.075  fy2075.076  fy 2076.077  fy 2077.078  fy 2078.079

u Share Capital H Reserve

B Group Loan H Colletral Loan

9%\9
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